
REGULAR BOARD
MEETING

 JUN 7



San Antonio Housing Authority 
*Regular Board Meeting

818 S. Flores St., San Antonio, TX, 78204 
1:00 p.m., Thursday, June 7, 2018 

1. Meeting called to order
The Board of Commissioners, or its committee, may hold a closed meeting pursuant to Texas Government               
Code § 551.071-076 for consultation concerning attorney-client matters, real estate, litigation, personnel, and security           
matters. The Board or committee reserves the right to enter into closed meeting at any time during the course of the                    
meeting.

2. Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence

3. Minutes
● Approval of the May 3, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes
● Approval of the May 17, 2018, Special Board Meeting minutes (Finance Committee)
● Approval of the May 17, 2018, Special Board Meeting minutes (Operations and Choice            

Neighborhood Committee)

CONSENT ITEMS 

4. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5822, approving the Consolidated Operating         
Budget for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated Non-Profits for the fiscal year              
ending June 30, 2019 (Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer; Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of             
Finance and Accounting)

5. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5827, authorizing the President and CEO to           
renew or place insurance policies covering property, liability, cyber liability, excess/umbrella,          
directors and officers, employment practices, workers’ compensation, automobile fleet,        
fiduciary, fidelity, flood, and boiler and machinery for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its              
affiliated entities, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, in an amount not to exceed $3,200,000 (Diana             
Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting)

6. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5826, authorizing the award of a contract for a             
cloud unified communication and collaboration solution to RingCentral, Inc. for an annual           
cumulative amount not to exceed $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year two,            
$175,000.00 for year three and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five; for a period of                 
one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms (Steven Morando,              
Director of Procurement and General Services; Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative           
Technology)

Page 2 of 124



7. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5825, authorizing the award of a contract for            
Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm to Geofill Material Technologies,           
dba, Geofill Construction (SBE) for an amount not to exceed $62,480.00 (Steven Morando,            
Director of Procurement and General Services; Lorraine Robles, Director of Development          
Services and Neighborhood Revitalization)

8. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5824, authorizing the award of contracts for           
Architectural and Engineering Services agency-wide to the following firms: AG Associates          
Architects (HABE, HUB), Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc.          
(DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE),            
Saldana & Associates, Inc. (AABE, MBE, SBE), Smith & Company Architects (AABE, MBE,            
SBE), Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE, SBE), and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C.; not to               
exceed an annual cumulative amount of $1,500,000.00 for a period of one year with the option               
to renew up to four additional one-year terms (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and             
General Services; Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and Sustainability)

9. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5823, authorizing Mission DG as developer of           
Vitre Apartment Transaction including: (I) execution of all documentation necessary to carry out            
transaction; (II) authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to serve as prime            
contractor; (III) to enter into the agreement of limited partnership for Vitre Apartments; and (IV)              
obtaining Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs tax credits for the project and             
other matters in connection herewith (Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer)

INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

10. Update and discussion regarding the Procurement Activity Report (Steven Morando, Director of           
Procurement and General Services)

11. Update and discussion regarding the May 17, 2018, Finance Committee Meeting (Thomas F.            
Adkisson, Chair, Finance Committee)

12. Update and discussion regarding the May 17, 2018, Operations and Choice Neighborhood           
Committee Meeting (Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair, Board of Commissioners)

13. President’s Report
● Customer Service Survey for AHP, PH and Beacon Clients
● Annual William “Bill” Sinkin Education Summit
● Bring Your Dog to Work Day
● Annual Father’s Day Fiesta
● SAHA to Host Youths for the Summer
● Art in the Park Meeting
● 2nd Annual Rib Cook-Off
● 2018 Safety Fair
● SAHA Celebrates Mothers
● Children Join SAHA Parents at Bring Our Daughters and Sons to Work Day
● Cassiano Homes Walking School Bus

Page 3 of 124



14. Citizens to be Heard at approximately 2:00 p.m. (may be heard after this time) Citizens              
wishing to speak on issues not related to items posted on the agenda should personally request               
to be placed on the Citizens to be Heard roster prior to 1:45 p.m. Citizens will be given three                  
minutes to speak. Only one appearance per speaker will be permitted at any regular Board              
Meeting. If present, a speaker may cede time to another speaker, but no speaker may have the                
floor for more than 9 minutes. Groups of citizens from the same organization are asked to share                
nine minutes to address the Board on certain items. Organizations must be represented by an              
Officer or a Board member, and follow the same speaking rules as individuals.

15. Adjournment

* Note: Whenever the Texas Open Meetings Act (Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code) provides for a closed meeting                    
in matters concerning legal advice, real estate, contracts, personnel matters, or security issues, the Board may find a closed meeting to                    
be necessary. For convenience of the citizens interested in an item preceded by an asterisk, notice is given that a closed meeting is                      
contemplated. However, the Board reserves the right to go into a closed meeting on any other item, whether it has an asterisk, when the                       
Board determines there is a need, and a closed meeting is permitted.
“Pursuant to § 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H,                    
Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun.”
“Pursuant to § 30.07, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under                   
Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried                   
openly.”

Page 4 of 124



MINUTES 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

May 3, 2018 

SCHEDULED:  1:00 p.m. at  818 S. Flores St., San Antonio, TX, 78204 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Commissioner 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner 
Charles Clack, Commissioner 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Charles R. Munoz, Vice-Chair 

COUNSEL:  Doug Poneck, Escamilla & 
Poneck, LLP 

TRANSLATOR: Interpreters Unlimited, Inc. 

STAFF: 
David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative Officer 
Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer 
Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal 
Services Officer 
Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human Resources 
Adrian Lopez, Director of 
Community Development Initiatives 
Lorraine Robles, Director of 
Development Services and 
Neighborhood Revitalization 
Brandee Perez, Director of Federal 
Housing Programs 

Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and  
General Services 
Domingo Ibarra, Director of Security 
Hector Martinez, Director of Construction 
Services and Sustainability 
Thomas Roth, Director of Asset 
Management  
Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and 
Accounting 
Richard Milk, Director of Policy and Planning 

Item 1: Meeting called to order 
Chair Morris A. Stribling, DPM, called the meeting to order at 1:07 p.m. 

Item 2: Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence 
Recitation of pledge and moment of silence 

Item 3: Minutes 
● Approval of the April 5, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes
● Approval of the April 19, 2018, Special Board Meeting minutes (Resident Services           

Committee)
● Approval of the April 19, 2018, Special Board Meeting minutes (Operations and Choice            

Neighborhood Committee)

Motion: Commissioner Adkisson moved to approve all sets of minutes. Commissioner Caballero           
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Page 5 of 124



Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkission, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

PRESENTATIONS 

Item 4: Good Samaritan Veterans Outreach & Transition Center 
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer, introduced retired Colonel             
William L. Mosely, Director of the Good Samaritan Veterans Outreach & Transition Center.             
Colonel Mosely provided an overview of the Good Samaritan Veterans Outreach & Transition             
Center located near the campus of St. Philip’s College. The presentation included the history,              
the background and the accomplishments of the new facility, which provides personalized            
services to all active duty and retired veterans in the greater San Antonio Area. After the                
presentation, the Board of Commissioners commended Colonel Mosely for providing a much            
needed service to our veterans and they will consider touring the facility to learn more about the                 
center and resources available to veterans. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Item 5: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5816, approving the 2018 Payment          
Standard Schedule at 90% of the FY2018 Small Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMRs) for the               
Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) Program and Mainstream Program  
Consent 

Item 6: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5818, authorizing the award of a           
contract for Benefits Consultant to McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. for an annual             
cumulative amount not to exceed $65,000.00; for a period of one year with the option to                
renew up to four additional one-year terms  
Consent 

Item 7: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5819, authorizing the award of a           
contract for Security Guard Services for Central Office to Blue Armor Security Services,             
Inc. (ABE, DBE, MBE, SBE, Section 3 Business) for an annual cumulative amount not to               
exceed $80,000.00; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional                 
one-year terms 
Consent 

Item 8: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5820, authorizing the award of          
contracts for Disaster Restoration of Operations Services, through The Cooperative          
Purchasing Network (TCPN), to Belfor USA Group, Inc., and Blackmon Mooring Services,            
Ltd, for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $150,000.00; for a period of one year                
with the option to renew up to one additional one-year term  
Consent 

Page 6 of 124



Motion: Commissioner Adkisson moved to approve Consent Items 5, 6, 7 and 8. Commissioner Weaver              
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkission, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Item 9: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5821, authorizing the award of a           
contract for Website Redesign, Hosting, Security and Maintenance to Pavlov          
Advertising, LLC for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $172,000.00 for year             
one, and $44,000.00 for each of the years two through five; for a period of one year with                  
the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms  
Item Number 9 was pulled as a Consent item for further discussion. Before approval of this                
item, Commissioner Caballero requested updates regarding timelines of the website redesign           
process and the integration process of communications with Beacon properties. SAHA staff            
agreed to provide the Board of Commissioners updates during implementation of the redesign             
process at 60, 120 and 180 days after signing of the contract. 

Motion: Commissioner Clack moved to approve Resolution 5821. Commissioner Weaver seconded the           
motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkission, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

 Item 10: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5817, authorizing SAHA staff to          
transfer eleven single family properties located in San Antonio, Texas, to a builder             
(TBD), at no cost to the builder, in exchange for the construction of eleven single family                
homes, at no cost to SAHA, in accordance with the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood             
Grant Infill Housing Strategy. The eleven single lots include the following property            
addresses: 519 Arthur; 611 Arthur; 1533 Hays; 1535 Hays; 1439 Lamar; 209 Gabriel; 1714              
Burnet; 1718 Burnet; 1418 Hays; 939 Poinsettia; and 943 Poinsettia 
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer, and Ms. Lori Hall, Assistant               
Director of of Real Estate and Homeownership, introduced Mr. Ruben Barrera, attorney for the              
law firm, Langley & Banack. Mr. Barrera has an extensive background in real estate and land                
use regulations and was invited to address the Board of Commissioners previous concerns             

Page 7 of 124



from the April 19, 2018, Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee meeting, regarding            
additional options available for the transfer transaction request of the eleven single family             
properties to a builder at no cost to the builder. Mr. Barrera presented additional legal covenant                
options for the Wheatley CHOICE Infill Housing. Of the several options presented, Mr. Barrera              
and SAHA Staff recommended the fifth option, Right of Reverter, where SAHA transfers the              
property title to the builder for so long as the following limitations are met: 
○ Home constructed/sales price < $150,000.
○ Home built to CHOICE Design Guidelines, Universal Design Guidelines, and City Building

Code.
○ Home sold to eligible income buyer < 120% of AMI ($76,000 for a family of four).
○ Limitations must be met prior to Closing sale with Buyer to avoid lender issues.
○ If Builder fails to meet the limitations,

● Land automatically reverts back to SAHA;
● SAHA would purchase any improvements based on cost to build and not Sales

Price.

Motion: Commissioner Caballero moved to approve Option #5, as described above, for Resolution            
5817. Commissioner Weaver seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles R. Munoz, Vice-Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 11: Update and discussion regarding the Procurement Activity Report 
Mr. Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services, reported there is            
currently one Invitation for Bids and one Request for Qualifications being advertised. The             
Invitation for Bids is for Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm and the               
Request for Qualifications is for Architectural, Engineering and Other Forensic Consulting           
Services. There are five solicitations that have closed and are currently being evaluated. The              
five solicitations include: Translation and Interpreter Services; Key Management System for           
Beacon Communities; Cloud Unified Communication and Collaboration Solution; New         
Affordable Home Construction Services Wheatley Infill; and Architectural and Engineering          
Services. 

Mr. Morando further reported that Procurement is currently working on a number of solicitations              
for advertisement. These include: Fencing and Retaining Wall Replacement at Castle Point            
Apartments; Broadband Feasibility Study; Printing and Publication Services; Media Monitoring          
Services; Public Relations Consulting Services; Load Bank Testing for Backup Generators;           
Victoria Plaza Modernization; Fair Avenue Apartments Expansion Joint Repairs; Demolition          
Services for Infill Properties; Long Term and Construction Financing; Developer for Culebra            
Road Property; Public Relations Firm for DSNR Initiatives; Consultant for Management of PH             
Portfolio; Automatic Door Maintenance and Repair; Fencing, Automated Gates and Pedestrian           
Access Gates Maintenance and Repair; Temporary and Contract Personnel Services; HRIS           
Consultant; Security Guard Services for Various SAHA Properties; Digital Display; and Exterior            
ADA Door Modifications at SAHA Central Office. Mr. Morando also provided information            

Page 8 of 124



concerning current change orders as well as a report of the vehicles purchased during the first                
quarter of 2018. 

Item 12: Update and discussion regarding the April 19, 2018, Resident Services Committee           
Meeting 
Commissioner Clack provided the April 19, 2018, Resident Services Committee Meeting report.            
The meeting was held in the Community Room of Springview Apartments and attended by              
twelve residents. The items discussed during the meeting included the following topics: 

● Update and discussion regarding the Federal Housing Programs Quarterly Report
● Update and discussion regarding FYE 2018 3rd Quarter Federal Housing         

Programs Client Services Report
● Update and discussion regarding ConnectHome Program
● Update and discussion regarding Resident Success Stories

.  
Item 13: Update and discussion regarding the April 19, 2018, Operations and Choice           

Neighborhood Committee Meeting 
An Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee meeting was held on Thursday, April 19,             
2018, in the Community Room of Springview Apartments. The following topics were discussed             
at the committee meeting: 

Update and discussion regarding Wheatley Choice Neighborhood activities 
An update for the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood was provided. 

Presentation - Victoria Commons Development Strategy 
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer, provided an update of the               
upcoming Development Services Neighborhood Revitalization projects. The presentation        
consisted of a brief overview of the department’s organizational chart, a map of current and               
upcoming projects, a timeline of projects without the Choice Grant, as well as an overview of                
Victoria Commons.  

The following resolutions were approved to move forward to the Board meeting: 

Resolution 5817, authorizing SAHA staff to transfer eleven single family properties           
located in San Antonio, Texas, to a builder (TBD), at no cost to the builder, in exchange                 
for the construction of eleven single family homes, at no cost to SAHA, in accordance               
with the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood Grant Infill Housing Strategy. The eleven single            
lots include the following property addresses: 519 Arthur; 611 Arthur; 1533 Hays; 1535             
Hays; 1439 Lamar; 209 Gabriel; 1714 Burnet; 1718 Burnet; 1418 Hays; 939 Poinsettia;             
and 943 Poinsettia was presented by Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services              
Officer; Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and Neighborhood Revitalization. 

Resolution 5816, approving the 2018 Payment Standard Schedule at 90% of the FY2018             
Small Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMRs) for the Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing            
(VASH) Program and Mainstream Program was presented by Brandee Perez, Director of            
Federal Housing Programs. 

Resolution 5818, authorizing the award of a contract for Benefits Consultant to McGriff,             
Seibels & Williams, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $65,000.00; for a               
period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was                
presented by Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Janie           
Rodriguez, Director of Human Resources. 

Page 9 of 124



Resolution 5819, authorizing the award of a contract for Security Guard Services for             
Central Office to Blue Armor Security Services, Inc. (ABE, DBE, MBE, SBE, Section 3              
Business) for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $80,000.00; for a period of one               
year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was presented by               
Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Domingo Ibarra, Director of            
Security.  

Resolution 5820, authorizing the award of contracts for Disaster Restoration of           
Operations Services, through The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN), to Belfor          
USA Group, Inc., and Blackmon Mooring Services, Ltd, for an annual cumulative amount             
not to exceed $150,000.00; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to one                  
additional one-year term was presented by Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and            
General Services; Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting. 

Resolution 5821, authorizing the award of a contract for Website Redesign, Hosting,            
Security and Maintenance to Pavlov Advertising, LLC for an annual cumulative amount            
not to exceed $172,000.00 for year one, and $44,000.00 for each of the years two through                
five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year                 
terms was presented by Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Jo             
Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative Technology.  

Item 14:    President’s Report 
● SAHA Receives Wheatley Family Phase IV HOME Award of $1,500,000.00
● 2nd Annual Rib Cook-off
● Texas NAHRO Awards
● BiblioTech East Grand Opening
● SAHA Receives Funding for HUD - Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing Vouchers
● 2018 SAHA Annual Report Released
● SAHA Unveils New Eastside Development at Grand Opening
● SAHA Celebrates Employees at Spring Event

Item 15: *Closed Session: 
Personnel/Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or         
dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or                  
employee and obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code             
Sec. 551.074 (personnel) and Texas Government Code Sec. 551.071 (consultation with           
attorney). 
● Consultation with attorney regarding the CEO evaluation process

Real Estate/Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate the management, purchase, exchange, lease or value of certain real properties and             
obtain legal advice regarding related legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec.             
551.072 (real property) and Texas Government Code Sec. 551.071 (consultation with attorney).  
● Discussion regarding Westside Choice Neighborhood

Chair Morris Stribling, DPM, recessed for Closed Session at 2:51 p.m. 

Item 16: Citizens to be Heard 
There were no Citizens to be Heard. 

Page 10 of 124



Item 17: Adjournment 
The Regular Board Meeting was not reconvened and the Board of Commissioners did not              
return from Closed Session. 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ ______________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Date 
Chair 

________________________________ ______________________ 
David Nisivoccia Date 
President and CEO

Page 11 of 124



MINUTES 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
May 17, 2018 

SCHEDULED:  12:30 p.m. at 818 S. Flores St., San Antonio, TX, 78204 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Commissioner 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner 
Charles Clack, Commissioner 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Charles Munoz, Vice-Chair 

COUNSEL:  Doug Poneck, Escamilla & 
Poneck, LLP 

STAFF: 
David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative Officer 
Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer 
Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal 
Services Officer 
Adrian Lopez, Director of Community 
Development Initiatives 
Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human 
Resources 
Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative 
Technology 
Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of 
Finance and Accounting 

Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and  
General Services 
Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services 
and Sustainability 
Domingo Ibarra, Director of Security 
Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and 
Neighborhood Revitalization  
Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management  
Richard Milk, Director of Policy and Planning 
Brandee Perez, Director of Federal Housing 
Programs 

Item 1: Meeting called to order 
Committee Chair Adkisson called the meeting to order at 12:39 p.m. 

Item 2: Minutes 
● Approval of the February 15, 2018, Finance Committee Meeting minutes

Motion: Commissioner McClure moved to approve the February 15, 2018, Finance Committee Meeting            
minutes.  Commissioner Clack seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Committee Chair X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Page 12 of 124



Item 3: Resolution 5822, approving the Consolidated Operating Budget for the San Antonio           
Housing Authority and its affiliated Non-Profits for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 
Mr. Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance              
and Accounting, presented the proposed goals and budget for fiscal year 2018-2019. They             
explained that the budget is created to help the agency plan operational activities, while              
considering established goals, with respect to the current and future funding environment. The             
Staff has been working on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget process since October 2017.  

While staff continues to monitor the federal funding news, budgets were prepared using             
conservative estimates based on available information. The proposed budget will be           
implemented for the Fiscal Year starting July 1, 2018, and ending June 30, 2019. Financial               
performance versus budget will be reported back to the Finance Committee on a periodic basis               
throughout the year. 

Motion: Commissioner Clack moved to approve Resolution 5822. Commissioner Weaver seconded the           
motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Committee Chair X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 4: Update and discussion regarding the Quarterly Financial Report for the San Antonio 
Housing Authority 
Ms. Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting, reported and provided the             
financial highlights of the San Antonio Housing Authority. The results of operations for the nine               
months ended March 31, 2018, reflect a surplus before non-cash items of $16.4 million, which               
was $9.2 million over budgeted projections. The Total Operating Revenue was approximately            
$4.4 million above budget, due to a favorable variance of $7.0 million in Section 8 Housing                
Assistance Payment (HAP) Revenue. The total Operating Expenses ended the period $3.5            
million below budget, due primarily to favorable variances of $1.9 million in Salaries and Benefits               
and $3.6 million in Other Expenses.  

The Comparative Balance Sheet reflects an overall increase in Total Net Position of $11.3              
million from March 31, 2017, to March 31, 2018. Total Assets increased $16.3 million due to                
increases of $8.3 million in Current Assets, $2.7 million in Fixed Assets, and $5.3 million in                
Other Non-Current Assets. The complete Quarterly Financial Report for the San Antonio            
Housing Authority was provided to the Board in the Finance Committee final packet. 

Item 5: Update and discussion regarding the Internal Audit Department Quarterly Report 
Ms. Helen Madison, Acting Director of Internal Audit, reported that Internal Audit provides             
independent and objective assurance, auditing, and consulting services to add value, improve            
internal controls, and strengthen the Agency’s operations. The function helps the Housing            
Authority accomplish its objectives by using a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and             
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes. In addition            

Page 13 of 124



to its oversight activities, internal audit serves as a resource for identifying opportunities for best               
practices and efficiencies. Ms. Madison’s presentation to the Board of Commissioners included            
updates regarding the status of FY 2017-2018 Internal Audit Plan, the preparation of the FY               
2018-2019 Internal Audit Plan, and the status of Corrective Action Items resulting from internal              
audits. 

Item 6: Adjournment 
With no objections, Committee Chair Adkisson adjourned the meeting at 1:55 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ ______________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Date 
Chair, Board of Commissioners 

________________________________ ______________________ 
David Nisivoccia Date 
President and CEO

Page 14 of 124



MINUTES 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OPERATIONS AND CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  

May 17, 2018 

SCHEDULED:  2:00 p.m. at the Central Office of the San Antonio Housing Authority, 818 S. Flores, 
San Antonio, TX, 78204 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair 
Charles Clack, Commissioner 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Charles R. Munoz, Vice Chair 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Commissioner 

COUNSEL:  Doug Poneck, Escamilla & 
Poneck, LLP 

STAFF: 
David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative Officer 
Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer 
Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal 
Services Officer 
Adrian Lopez, Director of Community 
Development Initiatives 
Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative 
Technology 
Brandee Perez, Director of Federal 
Housing Programs 

Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and  
General Services 
Domingo Ibarra, Director of Security 
Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and 
Neighborhood Revitalization  
Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management  
Richard Milk, Director of Policy and Planning 
Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human 
Resources 
Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities 
Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and 
Accounting 

Item 1: Meeting called to order 
Chair Stribling, DPM, called the meeting to order at 2:39 p.m. 

Item 2: Update and discussion regarding Wheatley Choice Neighborhood activities        
relating to People, Housing and Neighborhood 
Ms. Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and Neighborhood         
Revitalization, provided updates regarding the housing components of the Wheatley          
Choice Neighborhood report and Ms. Beth Keel, Sustainability Liaison, provided updates           
of the Urban Farm. Ms. Robles also reported that the first community planning meeting              
for the Neighborhood Beautification project will be held on May 23, 2018, at the              
Wheatley Park Senior Living Community Room.  

Mr. Adrian Lopez, Director of Community Development Initiatives, provided a brief           
update regarding Choice education and training strategies. Mr. Lopez, also provided a            
brief update regarding Choice resident health. He reported that the Case Managers and             
the UIW Nurses have begun referring families to the new UHS Clinic. The UHS Clinic               

Page 15 of 124



staff and SAHA management have met to address the issues of walk-in policies and              
primary doctor requirements. Mr. Lopez also stated that in the future he will provide a               
report to highlight the progress of Urban Strategies.  

OPERATIONS 

Item 3: Resolution 5823, authorizing Mission DG as developer of Vitre Apartment          
Transaction including: (I) execution of all documentation necessary to carry out           
transaction; (II) authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to serve           
as prime contractor; (III) to enter into the agreement of limited partnership for             
Vitre Apartments; and (IV) obtaining Texas Department of Housing and          
Community Affairs tax credits for the project and other matters in connection            
herewith  
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer, reported that Mission DG              
is a developer of affordable housing in the State of Texas and specializes in the               
development, construction and management of high quality senior and multi-family          
residential properties. The developer has approached SAHA with an opportunity to           
partner in the development of this affordable, multi-family housing development.  

Mr. Mark Trolley, the developer, was present to answer questions regarding the            
development of the Vitre Apartments. The Vitre Apartments will be an approximately 232             
unit housing development located at 120 N. Leona Street, San Antonio, Texas. The             
development will be targeted specifically for working families and will consist of 48 tax              
credit units. The new development will provide a mix of studio, one-bedroom and             
two-bedroom units with appropriate design considerations and amenities. Virte         
Apartments has an estimated development cost of $34,806,314.00 and will be funded by             
four percent Tax Credits and a HUD 221(d)(4) loan.  

Mission DG will partner with the San Antonio Housing Authority, which will benefit both              
entities. The partnership will receive the benefit of the San Antonio Housing Facility             
Corporation’s ad valorem tax exemption, as well as its sales tax exemption; the agency              
will add units to its affordable housing portfolio, enabling the agency to serve more              
residents and further its mission. Mission DG will provide ongoing guarantees and long             
term property management. 

Motion: Commissioner Caballero moved to approve Resolution 5823. Commissioner Clack         
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Page 16 of 124



Dr. Stribling recessed the meeting at 3:22 p.m. to convene the San Antonio Housing              
Facility Corporation Meeting. The Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee         
Meeting was reconvened at 3:24 p.m. 

Item 4: Resolution 5827, authorizing the President and CEO to renew or place insurance            
policies covering property, liability, cyber liability, excess/umbrella, directors and         
officers, employment practices, workers’ compensation, automobile fleet,       
fiduciary, fidelity, flood, and boiler and machinery for the San Antonio Housing            
Authority and its affiliated entities, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, in an amount not to              
exceed $3,200,000  
Ms. Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting, reported that the U.S.             
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires Public Housing          
Authorities (PHAs) to maintain adequate insurance coverage on all properties. On June            
5, 2014, the Board of Commissioners approved awarding a contract to McGriff, Seibels             
and Williams of Texas (MSW) as SAHA’s Broker of Record (BOR). The BOR serves as               
a consultant for insurance products in the market and presents SAHA the best options              
for consideration. MSW is currently in its final year of their contract.  

Annual efforts include cost and coverage comparisons in the market for SAHA’s            
affordable housing portfolio and operations insurance needs, whereby selections are          
recommended based on the best cost and fit for SAHA. The FY 2017-2018 Board              
approved request was $2,950,000; the projected costs for FY 2018-2019 are expected            
not to exceed $3,200,000. This amount is included in the FY 2018-2019 budget. The              
policy periods covered will be July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019.  

Ms. Fiedler further stated that the total projected increase requested is $250,000 or 9.35              
percent. Cost increases are typically attributable to variable market conditions, claims           
loss history, policy limits of liability adjustments, filling coverage gaps, and catastrophic            
events. Most impactful to the increase was SAHA’s 2016 hail claims, as well as, the               
addition of properties requiring flood insurance coverage. SAHA Staff believes these           
projected costs are the worst case scenario. Historically, SAHA has been unable to             
obtain competitive pricing in the open market, largely attributable to being classified a             
high risk insured. The BOR is restricted from securing full indications until May 1, 2018,               
and through June 30, 2018, as per industry standards.  

To conclude, Ms. Fiedler informed the Board that in order to secure the best possible               
products and pricing, SAHA staff seeks authorization to bind policies by or before June              
30, 2018. Staff will prepare a follow-up Board agenda item to inform the Board of               
Commissioners of actual placement and a more relevant cost projection in July 2018.             
Approximately ten percent of the $3,200,000 is specifically for policy additions, premium            
increases, policy adjustments, coverage gaps, or to insure special events, as they occur             
throughout the year. 

Motion: Commissioner Weaver moved to approve Resolution 5827. Commissioner Clack         
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Page 17 of 124



Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 5: Resolution 5826, authorizing the award of a contract for a cloud unified            
communication and collaboration solution to RingCentral, Inc. for an annual          
cumulative amount not to exceed $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year            
two, $175.000.00 for year three and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five;               
for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year                
terms 
Ms. Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative Technology, reported that SAHA’s current            
phone system, PBX and business communication tool is outdated and in need of an              
upgraded solution. SAHA requires the services of a vendor to provide an upgraded             
solution that includes cloud/hosted communication, collaboration and Unified        
Communication as a service, physical devices, technical support and maintenance.          
Unified communications (UC) will provide the new user experience with the integration            
of communication services from any device that includes, but is not limited, to the              
following services: instant messaging (chat), softphone, mobile and physical phone call           
functionality, voice (including IP telephony), mobility features (including extension         
mobility and single number reach), audio/video conferencing, web conferencing with          
desktop sharing, data sharing, call control and call auditing, reporting and analytics, PBX             
functionality from softphone, physical phone and mobile devices, such as voicemail to            
email, SMS and fax services from desktop, all rolled into one premium license. The call               
analytics and reporting will be used as a dashboard of data to manage queues and call                
volume for better call handling and response. UC allows an individual to send a              
message on one medium and receive the same communication on another medium.            
The solution will provide new models of physical phones for call conferencing and             
administrative access to multiple lines that will be incorporated into a hybrid solution.             
The Premium license will allow for any device to be used as a communication and               
collaboration tool.  

On February 21, 2018, SAHA issued a “Request For Proposals” (RFP)           
#1802-838-35-4754 for Cloud Unified Communication and Collaboration Solution, which         
closed on March 23, 2018. Mr. Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General             
Services, informed the Board that a total of four proposals were received in response to               
the RFP: Hi-Tech Bangla Information Systems, Inc. (DBE, MBE, SBE), Netsync           
Network Solutions (HUB), RingCentral, Inc., and McCom, Inc. After completion of the            
initial evaluation, the three highest rated proposers were invited to present their            
presentation to the evaluation committee. Based on the above, we are recommending            
contract award to RingCentral. They are the highest rated responsive and responsible            
proposer.  

The cost for the cloud unified communication and collaboration solution is not expected             
to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for             

Page 18 of 124

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Instant_messaging
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Presence_information
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Presence_information
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/IP_telephony
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Extension_Mobility
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Extension_Mobility
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Desktop_sharing
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Call_control


year two, $175,000.00 for year three, and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and               
five; and will be funded through operating and available reserve funds. 

Motion: Commissioner Caballero moved to approve Resolution 5826. Commissioner Clack         
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 6: Resolution 5825, authorizing the award of a contract for Prefabricated Metal           
Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm to Geofill Material Technologies, dba,           
Geofill Construction (SBE) for an amount not to exceed $62,480.00 
Ms. Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and Neighborhood         
Revitalization, informed the Board that SAHA requires the services of a contractor to             
construct a prefabricated metal building to include the building’s foundation, permits, and            
electrical work for the Garcia Street Urban Farm, which will be used as a              
farmhouse-type structure. The building will house tools and equipment that are needed            
for the farm and other items needed for community functions, e.g., Farmers Market. A              
commercial sink with a drain will be installed for washing harvested vegetables, and a              
walk-in cooler for storage of the harvest. The farm will be maintained by volunteers from               
the community. Additionally, St. Phillips College and other educational institutions and/or           
schools have plans to develop curriculum around the Urban Farm. This is part of the                
Critical Community Initiatives plan.  

On April 17, 2018, SAHA issued an “Invitation For Bids” (IFB) #1803-909-25-4780 for             
Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm, which closed on May 2,             
2018. Mr. Morando informed the Board that a total of three bids were received in               
response to the IFB: All Pro General Construction (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE,             
Section 3 Business), Geofill Material Technologies, dba, Geofill Construction (SBE), and           
JC’s Construction & Remodeling (HABE, WBE, Section 3 Business). All bids were            
evaluated on the following criteria: purchase price, reputation of the bidder and its             
goods or services, quality of the goods or services, extent to which the goods or               
services meet SAHA’s needs, total long term cost, and any relevant criteria listed within              
the solicitation document. Based on the above, we are recommending contract award to             
Geofill Material Technologies. They are the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.           
Geofill Material Technologies, LLC, dba, as Geofill Construction, was founded in 2003,            
and is located in Schertz, Texas. 

In addition, the cost for the prefabricated metal building for the Garcia Street Urban Farm               
is not expected to exceed an amount of $62,480.00, to include a base bid amount of                
$56,800.00, and a 10% contingency in the amount of $5,680.00. This project will be              
funded through the Choice Grant. 

Page 19 of 124



Motion: Commissioner Clack moved to approve Resolution 5825. Commissioner Weaver         
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 7: Resolution 5824, authorizing the award of contracts for Architectural and          
Engineering Services agency-wide to the following firms: AG Associates         
Architects (HABE, HUB), Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Durand-Hollis Rupe         
Architects, Inc. (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C.            
(ESBE, SBE, WBE), Saldana & Associates, Inc. (AABE, MBE, SBE), Smith &            
Company Architects (AABE, MBE, SBE), Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE,           
SBE), and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C.; not to exceed an annual cumulative             
amount of $1,500,000.00 for a period of one year with the option to renew up to                
four additional one-year terms 
Mr. Morando, and Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and Sustainability,           
reported that SAHA requires the services of architectural and engineering firms on an             
as-needed basis, with experience in various disciplines for SAHA projects at various            
properties and communities. Projects may include: comprehensive modernization of         
public and affordable housing properties; site improvements to include driveways,          
sidewalks, site lighting, and landscape; moderate rehabilitation of single and multi-family           
properties for the creation of energy efficient green communities; design work           
architectural and structural upgrades to the interior and exteriors of various buildings at             
a variety of properties; roofing at various properties; rehabilitation of fire, water, mold,             
and wind damaged properties; upgrades to playgrounds; renovation of single family           
homes to address structural, electrical, plumbing, and other defects; and property           
assessments and/or forensic evaluations of structural, electrical, plumbing or other          
defects in commercial, single or multi-family housing structures and improvements.  

On March 26, 2018, SAHA issued a Request For Qualifications (RFQ)           
#1803-906-07-4768 for Architectural and Engineering Services that closed on April 18,           
2018. A total of sixteen proposals were received in response to this solicitation. All              
proposals were evaluated on the following criteria: experience, competency, green          
building, project approach, response, and strength of the firm’s Section 3 and SWMBE             
plans. Based on the above, AG Associates Architects, Alamo Architects, Durand-Hollis           
Rupe Architects (DHR), Debra Dockery Architects, Saldana & Associates Architects,          
Smith & Company Architects, Sprinkle & Co. Architects, and Tyson and Billy Architects             
are the highest rated responsive and responsible proposers and are being           
recommended for contract award.  

The cost for architectural and engineering services is not expected to exceed an annual              
cumulative amount of $1,500,00.00 and will be funded through capital grant funds,            
insurance proceeds, approved operating budgets, and available reserves. 

Page 20 of 124



Motion: Commissioner Caballero moved to approve Resolution 5824. Commissioner Clack         
seconded the motion. Approved. 

Member Aye Nay 
Absent 

At Time of Vote Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair X 
Charles Clack, Commissioner X 
Francesca Caballero, Commissioner X 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner X 
Jessica Weaver, Commissioner X 

Item 8: Update and discussion regarding Fencing and Retaining Wall Replacement at          
Castle Point Apartments 
Mr. Morando, Mr. Martinez, and Ms. Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities,            
reported that on March 28, 2018, SAHA received a Notice of Violation from the City of                
San Antonio Code Enforcement related to the retaining walls at the Beacon            
Communities Castle Point Apartments. The structure is approximately 1,150 linear feet           
and is located on the east and south sides of the property. The retaining wall and fencing                 
has been a part of Beacon’s Overall Castle Point Site Wide Improvements Project, which              
is not scheduled to start until approximately late summer of this year.  

To expedite the completion of this project, and in response to the Code notice, SAHA               
has requested price quotes from three State of Texas TXMAS (Texas Multiple Award             
Schedule) contractors with responses due May 14, 2018. SAHA is able to utilize TXMAS              
contracts as a member of the State of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Program. Although             
use of TXMAS contracts are exempt from competitive bidding requirements, SAHA has            
chosen to obtain quotes from multiple vendors to ensure it receives a fair and              
reasonable price. Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC, SAHA’s architect for the Castle Point             
project, had provided an estimated cost of $208,577 for this work. Under SAHA’s             
Procurement Policy, the Contracting Officer or designee can approve any procurement           
of goods, supplies, materials, services or equipment needed to mitigate an emergency            
regardless of the dollar amount, provided that the nature and value of said purchases, if               
such purchases exceed delegated authority, shall be reported to the Board of            
Commissioners consistent with this Policy. An emergency is an event which requires            
immediate action in order to prevent a hazard to life, health, safety, welfare or to avoid                
undue additional cost to SAHA. In this particular case, there are concerns for safety in               
the event the wall were to fail before our larger site wide project is completed.  

Mr. Morando further stated that since the expenditure amount to mitigate the emergency             
is expected to exceed the delegated authority of the Contracting Officer, and in             
accordance with the SAHA Procurement Policy, a ratification will be presented at an             
upcoming Board of Commissioners meeting with details of the award and the contract             
amount. 

Item 9: Update and discussion regarding Beacon Communities Capital Projects 
Ms. Baird provided a brief overview of the Beacon Communities Capital Projects for the              
following properties: Woodhill, Towering Oaks, Monterrey Park, Castle Point, La          

Page 21 of 124



Providencia, Villa De Valencia, Sunshine Plaza, Pecan Hill, Burning Tree, Encanta Villa            
and Legacy at Crown Meadows. 

Item 10: Update and discussion regarding the Capital Plan for Public Housing 
Mr. Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management, provided a quarterly status update on             
capital projects that have been contemplated under the Public Housing 5 Year Capital             
Plan. Projects have been completed at the following properties: Cross Creek           
Apartments, Escondida Apartments, H.B. Gonzalez Apartments, Madonna Apartments,        
Morris Beldon Apartments, W.C. White Apartments and Westway Apartments.  

The projects in process include the following properties: Charles Andrews Apartments,           
Francis Furey Apartments, Frank Hornsby Apartments, Lila Cockrell Apartments, Lincoln          
Heights Apartments and Tarry Towne Apartments.  

The projects in the planning phase include the following properties: Blanco Apartments,            
Cassiano Homes, Fair Avenue Apartments, Le Chalet Apartments, T.L. Shaley          
Apartments, Victoria Plaza and Villa Tranchese apartments. 

Mr. Roth further stated that the capital projects are being funded by a combination of               
Capital Fund Program (CFP), Moving to Work (MTW) Funds, insurance loss proceeds,            
and available reserves. 

Item 11: Adjournment 
Chair Stribling adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ ______________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Date 
Chair, Board of Commissioners 

________________________________ ______________________ 
David Nisivoccia Date 
President and CEO

Page 22 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY   June 7, 2018 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5822, APPROVING THE CONSOLIDATED OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE         
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY AND ITS AFFILIATED NON-PROFITS FOR THE          
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

_______________________        _______________________         ______________________ 
David Nisivoccia Ed Hinojosa Diana Kollodziej Fiedler 
President and CEO Chief Financial Officer  Director of Finance and 

Accounting 

Requested Action: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5822, approving the Consolidated Operating          
Budget for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its Affiliated Non-Profits for the fiscal year               
ending June 30, 2019. 

Summary: 
The budget is to help the agency plan operational activities, while considering established goals,              
with respect to the current and future funding environment. The budget has been developed in               
support of the San Antonio Housing Authority’s strategic goals: 

1) Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic            
stability.

2) Invest in our greatest resource – our employees – and establish a track record for              
integrity, accountability, collaboration and strong customer service.

3) Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities.
4) Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing.
5) Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization.
6) Develop a local and national reputation for being an effective leader, partner, and            

advocate for affordable housing and its residents.

All departmental and operational budgets were prepared in accordance with the following            
directives: 

● All SAHA budgets are based on Agency priorities and established strategic goals as            
reflected in PlanBase.

● Section 8 HAP is budgeted at 95% funding proration with our Target Utilization of 12,146              
vouchers, adjusted for known allocations of Tenant Relocation or Special Programs.

● For Section 8 Administration, we anticipate funding at 70% proration. Section 8           
Administration includes continued efforts for efficiency improvement and cost reduction.

● Public Housing property budgets anticipate subsidy funding at 87% proration.         
Accordingly, all cost budgets are consistent with this projected funding level. Target           
occupancy is 97%.

● Beacon properties target occupancy is 96%.
● Development Services budgets are consistent with the 5-year development plan.

Page 23 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY   June 7, 2018 

● Central Office Cost Center (COCC) and Service Departments will experience continued          
pressure on funding and fees. The COCC funding restrictions are partially supported by            
efficiency improvements and other cost reduction efforts.

Staff has been working on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget process since October 2017.              
While staff continues to monitor the federal funding news, budgets were prepared using             
conservative estimates based on available information. Staff is pleased to present an overall             
balanced budget for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. 

Following are some of the financial highlights comparing fiscal year 2017-2018 to fiscal year              
2018-2019: 

Revenues increased from $176 million to $178.3 million, primarily due to an increase in rental               
revenue, capital grants, operating fund and interest income. 

The Public Housing Operating subsidy for the 2018 Calendar Year is currently being funded at               
90% of our original request of $23.4 million, although these figures are not finalized at this point.                 
Unfortunately, we have no indication of what the 2019, funding will be, so we have projected an                 
average funding of 87% for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. 

The budgets accommodate employee performance evaluation increases of up to 3%. 

Managers worked diligently to produce operating budgets for their areas of responsibility.            
Officers and Directors have met with the Executive team to present their budgets and have               
made all appropriate adjustments. 

Staff has focused on making prudent departmental and budgetary decisions, especially during            
this very challenging and changing funding environment. The agency will also continue            
identifying and implementing solutions that will build on existing strengths and deliver services             
effectively and efficiently, while being innovative, ethical and nimble. 

Following review by the Finance Committee, the budget will be presented to the full Board of                
Commissioners for consideration and approval at the June 7, 2018, meeting. 

Financial Impact: 
The proposed budget will be implemented for the Fiscal Year starting July 1, 2018, and ending                
June 30, 2019. Financial performance versus budget will be reported back to the Finance              
Committee on a periodic basis throughout the year. 

Strategic Goal: 
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 

Attachments: 
Resolution 5822 
HUD form 52574 
Budget Presentation 

Page 24 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5822 

RESOLUTION 5822, APPROVING THE CONSOLIDATED OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE         
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY AND ITS AFFILIATED NON-PROFITS FOR THE          
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year of the San Antonio Housing Authority and its Affiliated Non-Profits              
runs from July 1 through June 30; and  

WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the San Antonio Housing Authority are responsible for the             
adoption of its operating budget under its Rules of Governance; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires the San             
Antonio Housing Authority adopt a public housing budget for its approval; and 

WHEREAS, the San Antonio Housing Authority has prepared a Consolidated Operating Budget            
that maintains the long-term financial health of the agency and the ability to provide quality               
housing and services; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed budget contains a provision to accommodate employee performance           
evaluation increases of up to 3%;  

WHEREAS, SAHA Moving-to-Work (MTW) funds are obligated consistent with the MTW Plan            
for the following: 

1) Section 8 funding shortfall - $1.5 million
2) Choice implementation matching grant for Wheatley Courts transformation - $1.5 million
3) Development of Labor Street Multifamily Property - $5.5 million
4) Capital Planning - $400 thousand
5) Funding for the Rehabilitation of Victoria Plaza - $10 million
6) Additional Funding for East Meadows Development - $600 thousand
7) Preservation and expansion of affordable and public housing - $15.9 million
8) Program administration and implementation of MTW initiatives - $1.4 million

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Reviewed the Consolidated Budget and has found that the final plan is reasonable in             
that it indicates a source of funding adequate to cover proposed expenditures; and

2) Approves Resolution 5822, approving the Consolidated Operating Budget for the         
San Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated Non-Profits for the Fiscal Year           

Page 25 of 124



Ending June 30, 2019, and the obligation of funds as described in this Resolution              
and included in the referenced Consolidated Operating Budget; and 

3) Authorizes the CEO to submit and sign the HUD forms related to this Operating             
Budget.

Passed and approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

___________________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM 
Chair, Board of Commissioners 

Attested and approved as to form: 

_________________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 26 of 124



Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed,  and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to 
complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. 

This information is required by Section 6(c)(4) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937.  The information is the operating budget for the low-income public housing program and provides a 
summary of the proposed/budgeted receipts and expenditures, approval of budgeted receipts and expenditures, and justification of certain specified amounts.  HUD reviews the 
information to determine if the operating plan adopted by the public housing agency (PHA) and the amounts are reasonable, and that the PHA is in compliance with procedures 
prescribed by HUD.  Responses are required to obtain benefits.  This information does not lend itself to confidentiality. 

PHA Name:                                            PHA Code:   

                                       Board Resolution Number:   

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the above-named PHA as its Chairperson, I make the following 
certifications and agreement to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the Board’s 
approval of (check one or more as applicable): 

DATE 

Operating Budget approved by Board resolution on: 

Operating Budget submitted to HUD, if applicable, on:  

Operating Budget revision approved by Board resolution on: 

Operating Budget revision submitted to HUD, if applicable, on: 

I certify on behalf of the above-named PHA that: 

1. All statutory and regulatory requirements have been met;

2. The PHA has sufficient operating reserves to meet the working capital needs of its developments;

3. Proposed budget expenditure are necessary in the efficient and economical operation of the housing for the purpose of
serving low-income residents;

4. The budget indicates a source of funds adequate to cover all proposed expenditures;

5. The PHA will comply with the wage rate requirement under 24 CFR 968.110(c) and (f); and

6. The PHA will comply with the requirements for access to records and audits under 24 CFR 968.110(i).

I hereby certify that all the information stated within, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, 
if applicable, is true and accurate. 

Warning:  HUD will prosecute false claims and statements.  Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 
U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012.31, U.S.C. 3729 and 3802) 

Print Board Chairperson’s Name: Signature: Date: 

PHA Fiscal Year Beginning:  

Page 27 of 124



SAHA Board of 
Commissioners 

May 17, 2018 

Budget Workshop 

Proposed Goals and Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Page 28 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

2 

Agenda 

I. Background

A. SAHA Significant Accomplishments in FY 2017-2018

B. Guiding Principles and Strategic Plan Alignment

C. Key Agency Budget Priorities

II. Funding Environment

A. Who We Serve

B. Federal Funding Trend

III. SAHA FY 2018-2019 Budget

A. FY 2018-2019 Consolidated Budget - Revenues and Expenses

B. MTW Proposed Uses

C. SAHA  Staffing Count and Organizational Chart

D. Agency Goals and Priorities

Page 29 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

3 

SAHA and Partner FY 17-18 Accomplishments 

Celebrated the opening of the Wheatley Park Senior Living Apartments, Phase II of the Wheatley Choice 
Neighborhood Initiative. A $15.5 million project, the Wheatley Park Senior Living mixed-income community 
offers 80 affordable one- and two-bedroom apartments. 

Won $10,000 and received an honorable mention for the creative design of a low-cost Wi-Fi network for 
residents from the National Science Foundation and tech company, Mozilla, through their Wireless 
Innovation for a Networked Society challenge. 

Received 15 Awards of Merit from the National Association of Housing and Redevelopment Officials 
(NAHRO) for various innovative programs and initiatives.  

Sold five single-family homes, the first batch in an 88-home spread for developments in and around what 
was formerly known as Mirasol Homes. SAHA has billed this as the largest reconstruction effort on the city’s 
west side in a decade and aspires to turn renters into homeowners and enable them to build generational 
wealth. 

Presented 189 R.E.A.C.H. (Rewarding Educational Achievement, Cultivating Hope) Awards to SAHA 
students for achieving Perfect Attendance and/or A-B Honor Roll. In addition, 43 SAHA youth received 
college scholarships. 

Received a 9% tax credit investment for the final housing phase of the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood 
Development from the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs. The $15 million total tax credit 
investment will be used to complete East Meadows II. 

Page 30 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

4 

Budget Guiding Principles & Goals 

I. Budget Guiding Principles

 Improve quality of life for residents

 Preserve and expand affordable housing

 Strengthen SAHA’s basic internal services, systems and staff capacity

II. Goals Consistent with Strategic Plan:

1) Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve
economic stability

2) Invest in our greatest resource - our employees - and establish a track record
for integrity, accountability, collaboration and strong customer service

3) Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities

4) Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing

5) Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong
organization

6) Develop a local and national reputation for being an effective leader, partner,
and advocate for affordable housing and its residents

Page 31 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

5 

Key Agency Budget Priorities 

  Operations:  Focus on operational excellence, high performer 

 Choice Neighborhood:  Full implementation of People, Neighborhood, and 
Housing goals 

 Moving to Work:  Focus on client success and people outcomes 

 5-year Asset Management Plan for capital improvements and new 
construction 

 Public Scorecard for SAHA strategic plan 

Page 32 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

6 

Who We Serve 

Page 33 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

7 

Federal Funding Trend 

Percentage Change -1.82% -100.00% -6.41% -1.83%

2018 vs 2017

 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher information indicated above does not include any Section 8 special programs
 Section 8 Choice Voucher proration was 99% in 2016, 97% in 2017, and 95% in 2018
 PH Capital Funding is currently unknown for 2018
 PH Operating Fund current proration is at 90% for 2018, HUD usually finalizes proration in October 2018

 

$-

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$25.0

PH Subsidy PH Capital Fund Section 8 Admin.
Fees

2015 $19.6 $7.3 $7.5
2016 $20.7 $7.0 $8.3
2017 $22.0 $7.1 $7.8
2018 $21.6 $- $7.3

$89.0

$89.5

$90.0

$90.5

$91.0

$91.5

$92.0

$92.5

$93.0

$93.5

$94.0

$94.5

Section 8 HCV
HAP Subsidy

2015 $94.4
2016 $92.8
2017 $92.8
2018 $91.1

Page 34 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

8 

FY 2019 Consolidated Revenue (Sources) 
$178.3 Million 

 Section 8 Revenue includes all special programs
 Capital Funds include Capital Funds Project and Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant

 Revenue above reflects Fiscal Year funding as opposed to Slide 7, which reflects HUD Calendar Year funding

Section 8  
56.37% 

Public Housing 
18.70% 

Beacon 
13.57% 

Development  
Services & 

 Neighborhood 
Revitalization 

2.0% 

Community  
Development 

Initiatives 
1.18% 

Capital Funds 
8.08% 

Administrative Support 
Departments 

.10% 

Section 8      $100.5
(HAP & Admin Fee)

Public Housing  $ 33.3

Beacon  $ 24.2

DSNR  $  3.6

Community Initiatives   $  2.1

Capital Funds  $ 14.4

Administrative Support  $  0.2
departments

     Projected 
  Line of  Revenue (Mil) 
 Business  $178.3 

Page 35 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

9 

FY 2019 Consolidated Revenue Trend 

FYE 6/30/17 FYE 6/30/17 FYE 6/30/18 FYE 6/30/19

Variance 2019
Budget vs

2018 Budget

Description Actual Budget Budget Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Rental Revenue 28.9$  31.4$  31.9$  32.3$  0.5$  

Grant Revenue
Section 8 - HAP 76.5 96.3 92.4 92.5 0.1
Section 8 - Admin. 9.0 8.6 8.4 7.9 (0.5)
Operating Subsidy 21.3 20.1 19.7 20.9 1.2
Capital Grants 1 15.6 19.9 14.2 14.4 0.2
Other Grants 4.0 3.2 4.8 4.3 (0.5)
Total Grant Revenue 126.4$  148.1$  139.5$  140.0$  0.5$  

Other Revenue 2 12.8 4.5 4.6 6.0 1.3

Total Revenue 168.1$  184.0$  176.0$  178.3$  2.3$  

1 Capital Grants include Capital Funds Project and the Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant
2  Includes Revenue such as Lease Payments, Cash Donations, Compliance Monitoring Fees, Other Income, Deposit

Forfeitures and Interest Income

Projected revenue in FY 2019 will increase by $ 2.3 Million 

Page 36 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

10 

FY 2019 Consolidated Uses of Funds 
$178.3 Million 

Section 8 Payments 
 to Owners    

51.80% 

Salaries & 
Benefits 
19.07% 

Capital 
Investment 

9.71% 

Repair & 
Maint 
6.37% 

Utilities             
4.21% 

Debt Service 
1.35% 

Other Admin. 
1.95% 

Technology 
1.45% 

Insurance 
1.60% 

Resident 
Services 
1.02% 

Consulting 
Fees 
.94% 

Protective 
Services 

.53% 

Section 8 Payments to Owners  $92.38

Salaries & Benefits  $34.01

Capital Investment  $17.32

Repair & Maint (Non-Capital)    $11.34

Utilities  $7.52

Debt Service Interest  $2.40

Admin. & Other  $3.48

Technology  $2.58

Insurance  $2.85

Resident Services  $1.82

Consulting Fees  $1.68

Protective Services  $0.94

        Projected  
 Budget   Expenses (Mil) 
Line Item      $178.3 

Page 37 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

11 

FY 2019 Consolidated Expense Trend 

FYE 6/30/17 FYE 6/30/17 FYE 6/30/18

Variance 2019
Budget vs

2018 Budget

Description Actual Budget Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Section 8 Payments to Owners $89.4 $96.1 $92.4 $92.4 ($0.0)
Salaries & Benefits 32.2 33.7 34.2 34.0 (0.1)
Technology 1 1.8 1.9 2.4 2.5 0.1
Admin and Other 2 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.5 (0.3)
Consulting Fees 3 0.7 2.8 3.5 1.7 (1.9)
Utilities 6.8 6.8 6.8 7.5 0.7
Resident Services 1.4 1.6 2.2 1.8 (0.4)
Repair & Maintenance 13.4 10.3 10.2 11.4 1.1
Insurance 2.1 2.3 3.3 2.9 (0.4)
Protective Services 0.8 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.1
Debt Service Interest 2.9 2.5 2.4 2.4 0.0
Capital Investment 13.3 21.4 14.0 17.3 3.3

Total Expenses 168.1$  184.0$  176.0$  178.3$  2.2$  

1 Includes telephone, technology/licensing costs and internet
2 Includes expenses such as audit, postage, office supplies, dues and fees, advertising, legal fees,

 training, travel, etc.
3 Includes $.7 Million for the Capital Grants

FYE 6/30/19

Budget

Page 38 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

12 

Consolidated Budget 
By Line of Business (Millions) 

Public Housing Section 8 Beacon Real Estate Central Office
CDI/MTW 
Initiatives

Description Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Subtotal
OPERATING REVENUE 32.3$   100.5$   24.1$   2.4$   1.2$   2.1$   162.5$   

OPERATING EXPENSE 26.9 98.8 13.7 1.6 11.8 3.9 156.7

OPERATING INCOME 5.4$   1.7$   10.3$   0.7$   (10.6)$   (1.7)$   5.9$   

INTEREST INCOME 1.0$   0.0 0.3 1.2 0.0 0.0 2.6

NON-OPERATING INCOME & EXPENSES* (7.3) (3.2) (5.6) (0.1) 9.9 0.1 (5.3)

NET SURPLUS or (DEFICIT) (0.8)$   (1.5)$   5.0$   1.9$   (0.6)$   (1.6)$   3.2$   

Balanced Budget 

* Management Fee and Interest Expense are the primary sources of the listed Non-Operating Expenses, but also includes
Replacement/Extraordinary items

Page 39 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

13 

Proposed Uses of SAHA MTW Funds 
Preservation and Expansion of Affordable and Public Housing 

Priority Purpose MTW Goal Amount (in
Mil)

Section 8 To enable Section 8 to continue to serve residents after continued funding
cuts

Strategic Goal # 4 -
Strategically expand the
supply of affordable housing.

$1.5

Community Development
Initiatives

Program administration and implementation of MTW strategic goals:
• Recruit and maintain the number of participants in the PH/HCV

FSS, Jobs Plus and the Earned Income Disregard (EID) to
over 1,600 participants

• Ensure over 650 or 40% participants secure/maintain
employment
Enroll and/or complete 480/30% into training/education

• Support staff to host over 250 community events
• Host 12 Early Engagement Sessions and serve over 2,000

residents
• Provide college scholarships and other academic incentives

for up to 300 students
• Provide more than 6,000 referrals for services to residents on
xxxxxxxan annual basis

Strategic Goal # 1 - Empower
and equip families to improve
their quality of life and achieve
economic stability.

$1.4

Preservation and Expansion
of Affordable and Public
Housing

Strategic Goal # 4 -
Strategically expand the
supply of affordable housing.

Choice implementation matching grant for Wheatley Courts transformation. $1.5

Development of Labor multifamily property $5.5

Capital Planning $0.4

Funding for the rehabilitation of Victoria Plaza $10.0

Additional funding for East Meadows Development $0.6

Preservation and expansion of affordable and public housing $15.9

Total Proposed Use of SAHA MTW Funds $36.8

Page 40 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

14 

SAHA Personnel Count 

Public Housing 189 194 37%
Section 8 & Special Programs 89 90 17%
Community Development Initiatives 51 52 1 10%
Beacon 38 70 13%
Real Estate Services 13 12 2 2%
Management & Administrative Support (COCC)

Property Management 13 15 3%
Other Management & Administrative Support 96 97 3 18%

Total 489 530 100%

Public Safety/Security (Full-Time Equivalents)

1 Includes 34 grant-funded positions for the Jobs Plus, ROSS, Annie E. Casey Foundation, Family Self Sufficiency, HPOG,
Endowment, ConnectHome and Choice Implementation Grants

2 Includes 1 grant-funded position for the Choice Implementation Grant
3 Includes 1/2 grant-funded position for the Choice Implementation Grant

Personnel
Distribution by

Department

12

2018
Budgeted
Positions

2019 Budgeted
Positions

Page 41 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

15 

SAHA Organizational Structure 

Page 42 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

16 

Goals for Assisted Housing 

Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability 
■ Refer 10% of clients to CDI for FSS enrollment
■ Employ a minimum of 5 youths from the Summer Youth Employment Program
■ Implement an MTW Activity based on Higher Opportunity Areas

Invest in our greatest resource - our employees and establish a track record for integrity, 
accountability, collaboration, and strong customer service 

■ Convert all training to Adobe Prime, an intuitive e-learning platform that provides staff with
interactive tutorials on SAHA policies and procedures

Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities 
■ Special Programs: Utilize vouchers/certificates at 95% or above
■ CoC: Utilize funds at 100%, ensure inspection turnaround within 3 business days, and collaborate

with partners to ensure maximum program utilization
■ Maintain MTW HCV utilization above 100%

Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization 
■ Design and implement a Client Portal
■ Implement time frame for HQS inspections
■ Implement Batch Processing for Elite processes

Develop a local and national reputation for being an effective leader, partner, and advocate for 
affordable housing and its residents 

■ Participate in the Mayor’s Housing Taskforce Committee

Page 43 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

17 

Goals for Public Housing 

Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability 
■ Refer 10% of clients to CDI for FSS and/or JobsPlus enrollment
■ Employ a minimum of 5 youths from the Summer Youth Employment Program
■ Research and design a rent reform activity that promotes family self-sufficiency

Invest in our greatest resource - our employees - and establish a track record for integrity, 
accountability, collaboration, and strong customer service 

■ Establish a training curriculum for client service specialists and maintenance technicians
■ Update all current staff on PH Specialist and Maintenance Certifications

Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities 
■ Improve REAC scores by an average of 15 points for underperforming communities

Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization 
■ Evaluate AMP structure to optimize both management and financial resources
■ Implement Work Order Touch for maintenance staff
■ Develop and implement a preventative maintenance plan for all communities
■ Design and implement a Client Portal

Develop a local and national reputation for being an effective leader, partner, and advocate for 
affordable housing and its residents 

■ Boost occupancy standards to achieve High Performer status

Page 44 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

18 

Goals for Beacon Communities 

Invest in our greatest resource - our employees and establish a track record for integrity, 
accountability, collaboration, and strong customer service 

■ Complete an increase of 10% of training opportunities over the previous year

Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities 
■ Complete the refinance of Burning Tree and Encanta Villa for rehabilitation of the communities and

potential proceeds sharing
■ Complete comprehensive rehabilitation of Castle Point, Monterrey Park, La Providencia for an

estimated improvement investment of $10M

Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing 
■ Complete the 15-year tax credit ownership transition of Legacy at Science Park and Legacy at

O’Connor

Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization 
■ Successfully complete the second transition of management towards our 4 year transition plan- 

savings to SAHA $200k annually
■ Maintain an average occupancy of SAHA 96% vs. 3rd party 94%
■ Transition management software of all SAHA managed and transitioning communities on a 3-phase

plan
■ Explore options to go paperless from application through file maintenance

Page 45 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

19 

Goals for Real Estate Services 

Invest in our greatest resource - our employees - and establish a track record for integrity, 
accountability, collaboration, and strong customer service 

■ Train Housing Counselor to use HUD approved data collection software (March 2019)
■ Establish SAHA as HUD Certified Counseling Agency (May 2019)
■ Certify 3 SAHA Staff as Housing Counselors (May 2019)
■ Obtain NAHRO/NeighborWorks America Community Revitalization & Development Certification

(Dec 2018)

Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability 
■ Home Buyer Readiness Program – Work with a partner to graduate 75 individuals and assist 10

Graduates to purchase homes (June 2019)

Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing 
■ Finalize financing for 100 Labor Street development (September 2018)
■ Decision to either list 98 Artisan Park townhome lots for sale or redevelop the lots (June 2019)
■ Obtain 9% tax credit award for Botello or Ruiz development (July 2018)
■ Begin pre-development and close on Tampico development (September 2018)
■ Sell 2 homes and 2 lots from single family scattered site HOPE VI Springview portfolio (Oct 2018)
■ Sell 12 single family homes in HOPE VI Mirasol - Blueridge (June 2019)
■ Select a General Contractor for new home development for Villas de Fortuna redevelopment (July

2018)

Page 46 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

20 

Goals for Choice Neighborhood 
Implementation 

Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability 
■ Neighborhood

 Oversee completion of 9 rehabs of owner-occupied single family homes in EastPoint Choice
(June 2019)

 Launch Infill Housing (August 2018)
 Complete three art projects in Phillis Wheatley Linear Park (June 2019)

■ People
 Transition People Services to CDI
 Create Endowment with anticipated leftover Choice funds
 Continue to emphasize employment, careers and increase household income
 Continue to provide workshops for returning residents to become successful tenants

Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing 
■ Housing

 Substantially complete East Meadows II (June 2019)
 Complete the Public Improvements project for the remaining Wheatley area (June 2019)
 Adopt new SAHA multi-family construction design standards (June 2019)

■ Neighborhood
 In-fill Housing Strategy - secure 12 additional lots in Target Area I and/or II locations in the

Choice footprint (June 2019)

Page 47 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

21 

Goals for Construction Services & 
Sustainability 

Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities 

■ Expend 100% Capital Fund 2015 Grant construction projects by April 2019, deadline

■ Execute construction contract for Victoria Plaza modernization

■ Execute construction contract for Castle Point capital improvements

■ Execute construction contracts for high rise fire suppression projects at Fair Avenue and Villa
Tranchese

■ Complete design and contract for Beacon projects at La Providencia, Monterrey Park, Sunshine
Plaza, and Pecan Hill

■ Complete design projects on time, as per design professional proposals

■ Reduce offline units list by 25%

■ Earn and maintain a “no-findings” result on internal audit of files

■ Obtain HERS Rater certification for construction inspector staff

Page 48 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

22 

Goals for Community Development Initiatives 

To empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability 
■ Improve quality of life for residents

 Host 1,500 events; 10,000 participants
 Recruit and maintain 30 resident councils
 Develop and implement comprehensive EDS service plan

■ Provide access to resources and non-SAHA programs
 11,000 households receive food assistance valued at $1.5 million
 3,000 FSS/ROSS/Jobs Plus referrals for services
 40 college scholarships;  250 REACH Awards

■ Improve resident capacity
 FSS/Jobs Plus – maintain over 1,600
 FSS/Jobs Plus  – 30% of households are in education/training
 FSS/Jobs Plus – 45% of households are employed
 Increase educational/training completion to 70%
 Develop and implement wealth building program
 Implement Resident Ambassador/Community Coach training

■ Facilitate residents to achieve self sufficiency
 Graduate 25 residents from FSS
 40 residents secure HS diploma or GED

■ Improve agency performance
 Secure over $1 million in grants
 Raise $100,000 for EIF
 Implement attendance initiative

Page 49 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

23 

Goals for Administrative Departments 

Asset Management 

 Develop an asset management data base to track and monitor immediate, short term, and long term required and completed capital
repairs/replacements identified in the physical needs assessment  (PNA)

Procurement 

 Finalize and implement the Fleet Management Policy and Procedures

Innovative Technology Services 

 Implement new infrastructure

Finance and Accounting 

 Purchase and implement accounts payable automation software in collaboration with IT department

Human Resources 

 Reduce yearly turnover from a high of 24% to 12% and first year turnover to 10%

Internal Audit 

 Develop and implement the 2018-2019 Internal Audit Plan in the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2018-2019, based on a comprehensive risk
assessment process

Legal 

 Continue to provide training and work with staff on fair housing, reasonable accommodations, evictions, and other timely topics

Policy and Planning 

 Continue to improve report cards / scorecards to communicate progress; develop a Strategic Plan update schedule, develop methods to
communicate with staff more directly, and continue to facilitate work groups

Public Affairs 

 Assess, reskin and re-launch website

Page 50 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE 
@HousingSAT 

Discussion 

Page 51 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018 

  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5827, AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO RENEW OR PLACE           
INSURANCE POLICIES COVERING PROPERTY, LIABILITY, CYBER LIABILITY,       
EXCESS/UMBRELLA, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS, EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES,      
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION, AUTOMOBILE FLEET, FIDUCIARY, FIDELITY, FLOOD, AND        
BOILER AND MACHINERY FOR THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY AND ITS           
AFFILIATED ENTITIES, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED            
$3,200,000 

________________________________ ___________________________________ 
David Nisivoccia Diana Kollodziej Fiedler 
President and CEO Director of Finance and Accounting 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5827, authorizing the President and CEO to            
renew or place insurance policies covering property, liability, cyber liability, excess/umbrella,           
directors and officers, employment practices, workers’ compensation, automobile fleet, fiduciary,          
fidelity, flood, and boiler and machinery for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated               
entities, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, in an amount not to exceed $3,200,000. 

SUMMARY: 
The protection and preservation of SAHA’s housing portfolio plays a leading role in the stability               
and improvement of the quality of life of the residents that it serves.   

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires Public Housing            
Authorities (PHAs) to maintain adequate insurance coverage on all properties. Similarly, lenders            
and additional interests have these requirements for non-profit properties. This activity is aligned             
with SAHA's priority to preserve its existing affordable housing assets. 

On June 5, 2014, the Board of Commissioners approved awarding a contract to McGriff, Seibels               
and Williams of Texas (MSW) as SAHA’s Broker of Record (BOR). The BOR serves as a                
consultant for insurance products in the market and presents SAHA the best options for              
consideration. MSW is currently in its final year of their contract.  

Annual efforts include cost and coverage comparisons in the market for SAHA’s affordable             
housing portfolio and operations insurance needs; selections are recommended based on the            
best cost and fit for SAHA. In addition, policy adjustments occur throughout the fiscal year. The                
FY 2017-2018 Board approved request was $2,950,000; the projected costs for FY 2018-2019             
are expected not to exceed $3,200,000. This amount is included in the FY 2018-2019 budget.               
The policy periods covered will be July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019. Premium increases are                
projected based upon early preliminary indications by the incumbent carrier and market            
conditions projections on operational policies.  
The total projected increase requested is $250,000 or 9.35 percent. Cost increases are typically              
attributable to variable market conditions, claims loss history, policy limits of liability            
adjustments, filling coverage gaps, and catastrophic events. Most impactful to the increases            

Page 52 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018 

were SAHA’s 2016 hail claims, as well as, the addition of properties requiring flood insurance               
coverage. SAHA staff believes these projected costs are the worst case scenario. Historically,             
SAHA has been unable to obtain competitive pricing in the open market, largely attributable to               
being classified a high risk insured. The BOR is restricted from securing full indications until May                
1, 2018, and through June 30, 2018, as per industry standards.  

In order to secure the best possible products and pricing, SAHA staff seeks board authorization               
to bind policies by or before June 30, 2018. Staff will prepare a follow-up board agenda item to                  
inform the Board of Commissioners of actual placement and a more relevant cost projection in               
July 2018.  

Approximately ten percent of the $3,200,000 is specifically for policy additions, premium            
increases, policy adjustments, coverage gaps, or to insure special events as they occur             
throughout the year. 

Renewal Process - Industry standard and best practices: 

March 2018 Review/complete renewal applications. 
April 2018 Gather and submit related data (to BOR) – loss runs, review market            

trends and pricing, discuss placement, negotiation or alternative        
strategies with CFO. 

May 2018 Recommend and request Board of Commissioners (BOC) authorization.          
Seek competitive premium indications in the open market, and discuss          
recommendations with CFO. 

June 2018 Receive and review quotes on entire portfolio, bind coverage. 
July 2018 Policies renewed or placed. 

Return to update BOC of placement and more accurate projected  costs. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
SAHA’s fiscal year 2018-2019 operating budget provides funding for these annual costs. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5827 
SAHA Insurance Schedule 

Page 53 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5827 

RESOLUTION 5827, AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO RENEW OR PLACE           
INSURANCE POLICIES COVERING PROPERTY, LIABILITY, CYBER LIABILITY,       
EXCESS/UMBRELLA, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS, EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES,      
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION, AUTOMOBILE FLEET, FIDUCIARY, FIDELITY, FLOOD, AND        
BOILER AND MACHINERY FOR THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY AND ITS           
AFFILIATED ENTITIES, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED            
$3,200,000 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of San Antonio, Texas, (SAHA) must maintain              
adequate insurance for its properties, its real estate assets, and the properties of its affiliates to                
protect itself, its residents, and its employees; and  

WHEREAS, the renewal or placement of insurance is necessary to comply with U.S.             
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requirements, lenders and additional           
interests’ requirements, and is necessary to protect SAHA’s properties, residents, and staff; and  

WHEREAS, SAHA’s Broker of Record, McGriff, Seibels and Williams of Texas, Inc., provides             
SAHA recommendations of the best available products and pricing; and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends authorization to proceed with insurance policy renewals or           
placements in an amount not to exceed $3,200,000; and  

WHEREAS, staff requests that the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO,             
or designee, to execute all documents and transactions necessary to renew or place all              
insurance policies for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated entities.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Approves Resolution 5827, authorizing the President and CEO to renew or place           
insurance policies covering property, liability, cyber liability, excess/umbrella, directors        
and officers, employment practices, workers’ compensation, automobile fleet, fiduciary,        
fidelity, flood, and boiler and machinery for the San Antonio Housing Authority and its             
affiliated entities, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, in an amount not to exceed $3,200,000;            
and

2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all documents, extensions,           
and annual premium remuneration necessary to renew or place all insurance policies for            
the San Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated entities.

Passed and approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Attested and approved as to form: 
Chair, Board of Commissioners  

_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 54 of 124



Insurance Renewals for SAHA and its Affiliates 2017-2018 Request to Board 2018-2019 Request to Board

Insurance Type or Insured Entity Property Liability

Umbrella Limit 
of Liability 
$8,000,000 Total Property Liability

Umbrella 
Limit of 
Liability 

$8,000,000 Total
Automobile Fleet $52,000 $52,000 $52,000 $52,000
Cyber Liability $29,000 $29,000 $17,000 $17,000
Fiduciary, EPL, and D&O $57,993 $57,993 $47,618 $47,618
Public Housing Liability $375,879 $375,879 $399,328 $399,328
Fidelity/Crime $8,900 $8,900 $8,970 $8,970
Workers' Compensation $350,000 $350,000 $300,000 $300,000
Flood $0 $0 $102,000 $102,000
Property:
Artisan Park, LLC $1,014 $1,000 $8,080 $10,094 $0 $0 $0 $0
Converse Ranch, LLC $25,959 $5,405 $8,080 $39,444 $29,543 $5,566 $8,167 $43,276
Converse Ranch II, LLC $20,254 $4,545 $8,080 $32,879 $23,008 $4,675 $8,080 $35,763
Durango Midrise, LP $65,682 $10,671 $9,158 $85,511 $65,682 $10,961 $9,227 $85,870
Homestead Redevelopment Partnership Ltd. $24,761 $6,798 $8,375 $39,934 $26,252 $7,204 $8,489 $41,945
Las Varas Public Facility Corp. $1,010 $2,985 $8,080 $12,075 $0 $2,578 $8,080 $10,658
O'Connor Rd. Ltd. Partnership $24,889 $6,541 $8,286 $39,716 $25,521 $6,705 $8,391 $40,617
Pecan Hill Apartments Inc. $11,954 $4,211 $8,080 $24,245 $14,450 $4,453 $8,080 $26,983
Public Housing Property $688,471 $688,471 $825,416 $825,416
Refugio St. Ltd. Partnership $40,087 $9,138 $8,769 $57,994 $41,056 $9,364 $8,915 $59,335
SAHA Boiler & Machinery $19,987 $19,987 $22,503 $22,503
San Antonio Homeownership Opportunities $6,268 $1,000 $7,268 $0 $0 $0 $0
San Antonio Housing Development Corp. $25,371 $4,546 $8,080 $37,997 $28,058 $4,676 $8,080 $40,814
San Antonio Housing Facility Corp. $225,886 $39,232 $18,707 $283,825 $243,570 $40,113 $20,125 $303,808
San Antonio Housing Opportunities Corp. $2,565 $1,000 $8,080 $11,645 $0 $0 $0 $0
Sendero I Public Facility Corp. $32,231 $8,391 $8,629 $49,251 $33,514 $8,630 $8,770 $50,914
SP II Ltd. Partnership $19,171 $5,233 $8,080 $32,484 $19,659 $5,361 $8,126 $33,146
Springhill Courtland Hts Public Facility Corp. $79,151 $22,046 $12,030 $113,227 $91,360 $22,543 $12,702 $126,605
Sunshine Plaza Apartments Inc. $15,253 $4,664 $8,080 $27,997 $15,654 $4,773 $8,080 $28,507
Vera Cruz Redevelopment Partnership Ltd. $5,354 $1,264 $8,080 $14,698 $5,551 $1,305 $8,080 $14,936
Woodhill Public Facility Corp $120,857 $33,778 $16,528 $171,163 $135,187 $42,457 $21,304 $198,948
Total Request/Cost of Insurance $1,456,175 $1,046,220 $171,282 $2,673,677 $1,747,984 $1,006,280 $162,696 $2,916,960
Approximately 10% for additions, increases, adjustments, or events $276,323 $283,040
Total Request including additions $2,950,000 $3,200,000

Increase over 2017-2018 Request $250,000
9.35%

Page 55 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5826, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR CLOUD UNIFIED           
COMMUNICATION AND COLLABORATION SOLUTION TO RINGCENTRAL, INC. FOR AN         
ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $275,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE,          
$170,000.00 FOR YEAR TWO, $175,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE AND $170,000.00 FOR           
EACH OF THE YEARS FOUR AND FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE               
OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 

  _____________________ ______________________ ________________________ 
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando Jo Ana Alvarado 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Director of 

and General Services Innovative Technology 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5826, authorizing the award of a contract for a              
cloud unified communication and collaboration solution to RingCentral, Inc. for an annual            
cumulative amount not to exceed $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year two,             
$175.000.00 for year three and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five; for a period of                  
one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The cost for the cloud unified communication and collaboration solution is not expected to              
exceed an annual cumulative amount of $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year two,              
$175,000.00 for year three, and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five; and will be                 
funded through operating and available reserve funds. 

SUMMARY: 
SAHA’s current phone system, PBX and business communication tool is outdated and in need              
of an upgraded solution. SAHA requires the services of a vendor to provide an upgraded               
solution that includes cloud/hosted communication, collaboration and Unified Communication as          
a service, physical devices, technical support and maintenance. Unified communications (UC)           
will provide the new user experience with the integration of communication services from any              
device that includes, but is not limited, to the following services: instant messaging (chat),              
softphone, mobile and physical phone call functionality, voice (including IP telephony), mobility            
features (including extension mobility and single number reach), audio/video conferencing, web           
conferencing with desktop sharing, data sharing, call control and call auditing, reporting and             
analytics, PBX functionality from softphone, physical phone and mobile devices, such as            
voicemail to email, SMS and fax services from desktop, all rolled into one premium license. The                
call analytics and reporting will be used as a dashboard of data to manage queues and call                 
volume for better call handling and response. UC allows an individual to send a message on                
one medium and receive the same communication on another medium. For example, one can              
receive a voicemail message and choose to access it through email or cell phone. If the sender                 
is online according to the presence information and currently accepts calls, the response can be               
sent immediately through text chat or a video call. Otherwise, it may be sent as a non-real-time                 

Page 56 of 124

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Instant_messaging
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Presence_information
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Presence_information
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/IP_telephony
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Extension_Mobility
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Desktop_sharing
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Call_control


SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018

message that can be accessed through a variety of media. The solution will provide new models                
of physical phones for call conferencing and administrative access to multiple lines that will be               
incorporated into a hybrid solution. The hybrid solution allows SAHA flexibility to be prepared for               
future business needs. SAHA will utilize a plethora of devices that can provide staff with a                
choice of physical phone placement, softphone use with a headset or to have the ability to                
incorporate the use of a mobile app with current business mobile phones. The Premium license               
will allow for any device to be used as a communication and collaboration tool.  

With this solution comes a project management methodology that includes a thoughtful            
implementation plan, aggressive timeline, testing with a user acceptance plan and an applied             
functional relevant training plan. In accordance to Strategic Goal Two, leveraging this level of              
communication and collaboration technology, coupled with the ability to implement a hybrid            
solution that can be device agnostic, we are investing in our greatest resource - our employees -                 
to establish a track record of integrity, accountability, collaboration and strong customer service.  

On February 21, 2018, SAHA issued a “Request For Proposals” (RFP) #1802-838-35-4754 for             
Cloud Unified Communication and Collaboration Solution, which closed on March 23, 2018.            
The RFP was published on the SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), La              
Prensa, the Hart Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to 74 vendors.               
A total of four proposals were received in response to the RFP: Hi-Tech Bangla Information               
Systems, Inc. (DBE, MBE, SBE), Netsync Network Solutions (HUB), RingCentral, Inc., and            
McCom, Inc. All responses were evaluated on the following criteria: relevant experience,            
respondent’s project management methodology, implementation plan, acceptance plan,        
proposed costs/pricing models, training plan/security, presentation/demo of solution, and         
strength of the contractor’s Section 3 and SWMBE Utilization Plans. After completion of the              
initial evaluation, the three highest rated proposers were invited to present their presentation to              
the evaluation committee. Based on the above, we are recommending contract award to             
RingCentral. They are the highest rated responsive and responsible proposer. 

RingCentral, Inc. was established in 2003. They are headquartered in Belmont, California, with             
field office locations in Centennial, Colorado; Boca Raton, Florida; and Charlotte, North            
Carolina. RingCentral is a global provider of cloud unified communications and collaboration            
solutions. They provide a fully integrated communication and collaboration platform allowing for            
workforces to be connected anywhere on any device through voice, video, team messaging,             
collaboration, short message service (SMS)/multimedia messaging services (MMS),        
conferencing, online meetings, contact center, and fax. This vendor has received no prior             
awards from SAHA. They have worked with the following Housing Authorities: Central Falls             
Housing Authority, Central Falls, Rhode Island; Chattanooga Housing Authority, Chattanooga,          
Tennessee; Housing Authority of New Haven, New Haven, Connecticut; Imperial Valley           
Housing Authority, Brawley, California; Reno Housing Authority, Reno, Nevada; and Terre           
Haute Housing Authority, Terre Haute, Indiana. RingCentral Texas clients include, but are not             
limited, to the City of Kyle, Texas, Ashley Furniture Homeworks, Dwyer Group, Trinity Basin              
Preparatory, TNT Crane, Fossil, Inc. and Disabilities of the Southwest. 

CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative Technology, who              
will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements and performance. The           
Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits the Contractor’s            

Page 57 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018

Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the vendor’s SWMBE              
subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance evaluation survey           
to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation process. 

STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Invest in our greatest resource - our employees - and establish a track record for integrity,                
accountability, collaboration and strong customer service. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5826 
Company Profile 
Scoring Matrix 
Advertisement List 

Page 58 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5826 

RESOLUTION 5826, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR CLOUD UNIFIED           
COMMUNICATION AND COLLABORATION SOLUTION TO RINGCENTRAL, INC. FOR AN         
ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $275,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE,          
$170,000.00 FOR YEAR TWO, $175,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE AND $170,000.00 FOR           
EACH OF THE YEARS FOUR AND FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE               
OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2018, SAHA issued a “Request For Proposals” (RFP)            
#1802-838-35-4754 for Cloud Unified Communication and Collaboration Solution which closed          
on March 23, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, a total of four proposals were received in response to the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, RingCentral, Inc. is the highest rated responsive and responsible proposer and is             
being recommended for contract award; and  

WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the cloud unified communication and           
collaboration solution is not expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $275,000.00             
for year one, $170,000.00 for year two, $175.000.00 for year three, and $170,000.00 for each of                
the years four and five; and will be funded through operating and available reserve funds; and  

WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or             
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Approves Resolution 5826, authorizing the award of a contract for a cloud unified            
communication and collaboration solution to RingCentral, Inc. for an annual         
cumulative amount not to exceed $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year           
two, $175.000.00 for year three and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five;              
for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms.

2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents           
associated with this contract.

Passed and approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM
Chair, Board of Commissioners 

Attested and approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 59 of 124



RingCentral, Inc. 
Company Profile 

RingCentral, Inc. was established in 2003. They are headquartered in Belmont, California with field              
office locations in Centennial, Colorado; Boca Raton, Florida; and Charlotte, North Carolina.            
RingCentral is a global provider of cloud unified communications and collaboration solutions. They             
provide a fully integrated communication and collaboration platform allowing for workforces to be             
connected anywhere on any device through voice, video, team messaging, collaboration, short            
message service (SMS)/multimedia messaging services (MMS), conferencing, online meetings,         
contact center, and fax.  

This vendor has received no prior awards from SAHA. They have worked with the following Housing                
Authorities: Central Falls Housing Authority, Central Falls, Rhode Island; Chattanooga Housing           
Authority, Chattanooga, Tennessee; Housing Authority of New Haven, New Haven, Connecticut;           
Imperial Valley Housing Authority, Brawley, California; Reno Housing Authority, Reno, Nevada; and            
Terre Haute Housing Authority, Terre Haute, Indiana. RingCentral’s Texas Clients include, but are not              
limited, to the City of Kyle, Texas, Ashley Furniture Homeworks, Dwyer Group, Trinity Basin              
Preparatory, TNT Crane, Fossil, Inc. and Disabilities of the Southwest. 

Page 60 of 124



Page 61 of 124



Page 62 of 124



Page 63 of 124



Page 64 of 124



Page 65 of 124



Page 66 of 124



Page 67 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY       June 7, 2018

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5825, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR         
PREFABRICATED METAL BUILDING FOR GARCIA STREET URBAN FARM TO GEOFILL          
MATERIAL TECHNOLOGIES, DBA, GEOFILL CONSTRUCTION (SBE) FOR AN AMOUNT         
NOT TO EXCEED $62,480.00 

_____________________ ______________________     ________________________ 
David Nisivoccia Steven Morando     Lorraine Robles 
President and CEO Director of Procurement     Director of Development 

and General Services     Services and Neighborhood 
    Revitalization 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5825, authorizing the award of contract for            
Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm to Geofill Material Technologies, dba,             
Geofill Construction (SBE) for an amount not to exceed $62,480.00. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The cost for the prefabricated metal building for the Garcia Street Urban Farm is not expected to                 
exceed an amount of $62,480.00, to include a base bid amount of $56,800.00, and a 10%                
contingency in the amount of $5,680.00. This project will be funded through the Choice Grant. 

SUMMARY: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services, who             
will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements and performance. The           
Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits the Contractor’s            
Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the vendor’s SWMBE              
subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance evaluation          
surveys to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation              
process. 

PILOT GOAL: 
Spur community development in surrounding neighborhoods in close coordination with Strategic           
Goals 3 and 4 through Choice Neighborhood Initiative. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5825 
Company Profile 
Tabulation 
Advertisement List 
Photos 

Page 68 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5825 

RESOLUTION 5825, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR         
PREFABRICATED METAL BUILDING FOR GARCIA STREET URBAN FARM TO GEOFILL          
MATERIAL TECHNOLOGIES, DBA, GEOFILL CONSTRUCTION (SBE) FOR AN AMOUNT         
NOT TO EXCEED $62,480.00 

WHEREAS, on April 17, 2018, SAHA issued an “Invitation For Bids” (IFB) #1803-909-25-4780             
for Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm, which closed on May 2, 2018;               
and 

WHEREAS, a total of three bids were received in response to the IFB; and 

WHEREAS, Geofill Material Technologies is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder and            
is being recommended for contract award; and  

WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the prefabricated metal building for Garcia            
Street Urban Farm is not expected to exceed an amount of $62,480.00 to include a base bid                 
amount of $56,800.00 and a 10% contingency in the amount of $5,680.00. This project will be                
funded through the Choice Grant; and  

WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or             
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Approves Resolution 5825, authorizing the award of a contract for prefabricated          
metal building for Garcia Street Urban Farm to Geofill Material Technologies, dba,           
Geofill Construction (SBE) for an amount not to exceed $62,480.00.

2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents           
associated with this contract.

Passed and approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM
Chair, Board of Commissioners 

Attested and approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 69 of 124



Geofill Material Technologies, LLC, dba, as Geofill Construction 
Company Profile 

Geofill Material Technologies, LLC, dba, as Geofill Construction was founded in 2003, and is              
located in Schertz, Texas. They specialize in commercial and residential services in areas that              
include the following services: construction management services, new construction, rehab and           
renovations, large and catastrophic loss, roofing, life and safety repairs, interior rehab and finish              
out, painting and flooring, in house heating and cooling repairs and replacement, energy audits              
and weatherization.  

Geofill Material Technologies has received prior awards from SAHA for the following services:             
Matt Garcia structural repairs, unit make ready for Public Housing, 10145 Galesburg            
reconstruction, H.B. Gonzalez structural and foundation repairs, and Castle Point burned units            
rehabilitation. They have worked with Housing Authorities to include Floresville Housing           
Authority, Schertz Housing Authority, and Stockdale Housing Authority. Their local clients           
include American Opportunity for Housing, Starr Properties, and Lynd Co.  

This contractor has been certified as an SBE (small business) by the South Central Texas               
Regional Certification Agency. 

Page 70 of 124



Page 71 of 124



Page 72 of 124



Page 73 of 124



Page 74 of 124



Page 75 of 124



Page 76 of 124



Page 77 of 124



Page 78 of 124



E. Commerce St.

Railroad

East Meadows

Idea School

Martin Luther King Dr.

N
. W

al
te

rs

Springview

Convent

Urban Farm

Page 79 of 124



Page 80 of 124



Page 81 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY         June 7, 2018

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5824, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACTS FOR        
ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES AGENCY-WIDE TO THE FOLLOWING        
FIRMS: AG ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS (HABE, HUB), ALAMO ARCHITECTS, INC. (SBE),          
DURAND-HOLLIS RUPE ARCHITECTS, INC. (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), DEBRA J.           
DOCKERY, ARCHITECT, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE), SALDANA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (AABE,           
MBE, SBE), SMITH & COMPANY ARCHITECTS (AABE, MBE, SBE), SPRINKLE & CO.            
ARCHITECTS, LLC (ESBE, SBE), AND TYSON AND BILLY ARCHITECTS, P.C.; NOT TO            
EXCEED AN ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT OF $1,500,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE            
YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 

  _____________________ ______________________ ________________________ 
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando Hector Martinez 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Director of Construction 

and General Services Services and Sustainability 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5824, authorizing the award of contracts for            
Architectural and Engineering Services agency-wide to the following firms: AG Associates           
Architects (HABE, HUB), Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc.           
(DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE),             
Saldana & Associates, Inc. (AABE, MBE, SBE), Smith & Company Architects (AABE, MBE,             
SBE), Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE, SBE), and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C.; not to                
exceed an annual cumulative amount of $1,500,000.00 for a period of one year with the option                
to renew up to four additional one-year terms. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The cost for architectural and engineering services is not expected to exceed an annual              
cumulative amount of $1,500,00.00 and will be funded through capital grant funds, insurance             
proceeds, approved operating budgets, and available reserves. 

SUMMARY: 
SAHA requires the services of architectural and engineering firms on an as-needed basis, with              
experience in various disciplines for SAHA projects at various properties and communities.            
Projects may include: comprehensive modernization of public and affordable housing          
properties; site improvements to include driveways, sidewalks, site lighting, and landscape;           
moderate rehabilitation of single and multi-family properties for the creation of energy efficient             
green communities; design work architectural and structural upgrades to the interior and            
exteriors of various buildings at a variety of properties; roofing at various properties;             
rehabilitation of fire, water, mold, and wind damaged properties; upgrades to playgrounds;            
renovation of single family homes to address structural, electrical, plumbing, and other defects;             
and property assessments and/or forensic evaluations of structural, electrical, plumbing or other            
defects in commercial, single or multi-family housing structures and improvements.  

Page 82 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY         June 7, 2018

On March 26, 2018, SAHA issued a Request For Qualifications (RFQ) #1803-906-07-4768 for             
Architectural and Engineering Services that closed on April 18, 2018. The RFQ was published              
on the SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), La Prensa, The Hart Beat,              
posted on NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to 124 firms. A total of sixteen               
proposals were received in response to this solicitation: Able City, LLC and Frank Architects,              
Inc. Joint Venture (ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE, WBE), AG Associates Architects (HABE, HUB),             
Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Bendicion Engineering, LLC (ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE),           
Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc. dba DHR Architects, Inc. (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE),             
Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE), Gerardo Noriega Architect, LLC dba             
GNA Architecture (ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), James Ed Carleton AIA, KAI/Alliance, LC dba KAI              
Texas (AABE, MBE, SBE), Mainstreet Architects, Inc. (WBE), Saldana & Associates, Inc. (DBE,             
ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE, Section 3 Preference), Smith & Company Architects (AABE, MBE,             
SBE), Sol Studio Architects (AABE, ESBE, MBE, SBE), Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE,              
SBE), StudioX9, LLC (AABE, WBE, Section 3 Business), and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C.  

All proposals were evaluated on the following criteria: experience, competency, green building,            
project approach, response, and strength of the firm’s Section 3 and SWMBE plans. Based on               
the above, AG Associates Architects, Alamo Architects, Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects (DHR),           
Debra Dockery Architects, Saldana & Associates Architects, Smith & Company Architects,           
Sprinkle & Co. Architects, and Tyson and Billy Architects are the highest rated responsive and               
responsible proposers and are being recommended for contract award. 

AG Associates Architects was founded in 1996, and located in San Antonio, Texas. This firm               
self-certifies as an HABE and has been certified as a HUB by the State of Texas. They are a full                    
service architectural firm whose services include: architecture, needs analysis, facility          
programming, master planning, space planning, site feasibility/selection/planning, interior        
design, technology planning, construction administration and post construction warranty         
services. The firm specializes in the design and renovations of housing developments and             
single housing units. AG Associates has received prior awards from SAHA. Their SAHA projects              
include the following: assessment studies at Lincoln Heights, Springhill I & II, Sutton Homes,              
and Wheatley; master plan studies at Lincoln Heights, Springview, and Sutton; modernization            
projects at Fair Avenue, Lincoln Heights, Matt Garcia, 43 scattered sites, and Villa Tranchese;              
Section 504 Accessibility Modifications at: Blanco Apartments, Highview Apartments, Jewett          
Circle Apartments, Kenwood North Apartments, and Lewis Chatham Apartments. They also           
work with various Housing Authorities: Carrizo Springs Housing Authority, Corpus Christi           
Housing Authority, Eagle Pass Housing Authority, and Pearsall Housing Authority. Their local            
clients include, but are not limited, to Bexar County, Kingsville LuLac Manor and Metropolitan              
healthcare. This firm’s Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes hiring two individuals: one in               
the technician category and one in the office/clerical category. Additionally, they will            
subcontract 10% of construction contracts to a Section 3 Business. 

Alamo Architects was established in 1984, and is located in San Antonio, Texas. This firm has                
been certified as an SBE by the South Central Texas Regional CA. They are a multidisciplinary                
firm specializing in institutional, educational, multifamily and retail architecture as well as urban             
planning. Their services include architectural, planning and interior design services. 

Alamo Architects has received prior awards from SAHA for architectural and engineering            

Page 83 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY         June 7, 2018

services. Their SAHA projects include: Artisan Park Economic Study; Costa Alameda, Costa            
Mirada, and Costa Valencia design and construction administration; Guadalupe Homes          
redevelopment; Leigh Street Design Guidelines; Marie McGuire Apartments modernization; San          
Juan Square Phase I, II, III revitalization; and Victoria Courts redevelopment. They have also              
worked with Beaumont Housing Authority, Corpus Christi Housing Finance Corporation, and           
Fort Worth Housing Authority. Their local public clients include the following: City of San              
Antonio, Bexar County, Alamo Colleges, Our Lady of the Lake University, and the University of               
Texas at San Antonio. This firms Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes a 30% goal for                 
Section 3 new hires and subcontracting 10% of construction and 3% of non-construction             
contracts to Section 3 Businesses. 

Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc. (DHR) was established in 1986, and is located in San              
Antonio, Texas. This firm has been certified as DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE by the South                
Central Texas Regional Certification Agency. Services offered by this firm include architecture,            
interior design, master planning, facility assessments, graphics and renderings, 3D visual           
presentations, LEED/Green consulting, project management, Texas Accessibility Standards        
(TAS) review, urban design, and virtual reality services. They specialize in the following areas:              
residential, multi-family housing, commercial, industrial, restoration, medical, retail, and         
education. DHR has received prior awards from SAHA for architectural and engineering            
services. Their SAHA projects have included the following: Blueridge Homes Design guidelines;            
Victoria Plaza assessments and modernization; Fair Avenue Apartments renovations; Matt          
Garcia Apartment renovations; TL Shaley Apartment complex upgrades; Pecan Hill Apartment           
and roof upgrades; and Sahara Ramsey Apartment upgrades. Their local clients include the             
following: Alamo Colleges, Brooks Development Authority, CPS Energy, Port Authority of San            
Antonio, Southwest Research Institute, and State of Texas Adjutant General’s Department           
(Camp Mabry). DHR will coordinate with SAHA’s Section 3 Coordinator to provide training and              
other economic opportunities to Section 3 residents. 

Deborah J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. was established in 1989, and is located in San Antonio,               
Texas. This firm has been certified as a ESBE, SBE, WBE by the South Central Texas Regional                 
Certification Agency. They are a full service architectural firm providing architectural services,            
programming, and master planning for institutions, public agencies, and non-profit groups.           
Relevant services offered include the following: professional architectural services,         
programming, master planning and feasibility studies, interior design, historic renovations,          
restorations, and reconstruction, site planning, selection, and analysis, due diligence reviews,           
construction management and administration, design-build coordination, building code review         
and analysis, Americans with Disabilities Act review, green building studies and implementation,            
renderings and visualizations. Debra Dockery has received prior awards from SAHA for            
architecture and engineering services. Their SAHA projects include the following: concept           
designs for securing the reception areas and locating security screening equipment at the two              
public entrances at SAHA’s Central Office. This firm has been awarded a contract for on-call               
architectural services with the City of San Antonio, and an indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity             
(IDIQ) contract with Bexar County and Brooks Development Authority. Their local clients            
include: City of San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas Parks and Wildlife, City of Floresville, City of                
Hondo, Medina County and numerous South Texas School Districts. SAHA’s Section 3            
Coordinator will work with this firm to develop economic opportunities in lieu of employment to               
benefit Section 3 residents. 

Saldana & Associates, Inc. was founded in 1973, and has two office locations in San Antonio,                

Page 84 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY         June 7, 2018

Texas. This firm is a Subchapter S Corporation registered with the State of Texas, certified as a                 
DBE, SBE, and MBE by the South Central Texas Regional Certification Agency and is also               
certified as a HUB by the State of Texas. They offer professional services in architectural               
design, urban design, site planning, historical preservation, library design, interior design,           
accessibility compliance, feasibility studies, and building programming and project management.          
The firm has had extensive involvement in the design and construction administration of             
large-scale municipal projects, educational facilities projects and government facilities. This firm           
has received a prior award from SAHA for architectural and engineering services. Their SAHA              
projects include the following: Dr. Charles Andrews renovations and site improvements; San            
Juan Brady Homes modernization; Cassiano Homes, fire damage repair; San Alfonso Senior            
Housing Development, 29 new units; Sutton Homes repairs and renovations; and Victoria            
Courts additions and renovations to the daycare center. They have also worked with Bexar              
County Housing Authority, Del Rio Housing Authority and PHARR Housing Authority. This firm             
has an IDIQ contract with ACCD District wide and SouthSide Independent School District. Their              
Client list includes the following: Alamo Community College District, Avenida Guadalupe           
Association, Bexar County, Laguna Shores Housing (Air Naval Base in Corpus Christi, Texas),             
San Antonio School District, the City of San Antonio, and the University of Texas. Saldana &                
Associates Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes hiring Section 3 Businesses to provide              
both weekly landscaping and maintenance/cleaning services, and a delivery company to           
transport documents to clients and contractors. Additionally, they anticipate filling two intern            
positions; a receptionist and a runner position.  

Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC was founded in 2006, and is located in San Antonio, Texas.                
They are a full service architectural/interior design firm with experience in a variety of building               
types to include municipal, institutional, religious, commercial, industrial, multi-family and          
residential. This firm has been certified as an ESBE, SBE by the South Central Texas Regional                
Certification Agency. Sprinkle & Co. has received prior awards from SAHA for architectural and              
engineering services. Their SAHA projects include the following: Castle Point renovation of eight             
apartment units, ADA, site exterior and stormwater improvements, and retaining wall design;            
Cassiano Homes structural evaluation and design work for six burned units; aesthetic            
improvements lofts at Marie McGuire and design guidelines for Wheatley Court Neighborhood.            
Their local client list includes the following: City of San Antonio, Silo Elevated Cuisine, Credit               
Human, Taco Cabana, Varga Endeavors and the private residences of Stacey Hill and Chuck              
Ramon. This firm’s Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes subcontracting 3% of their work to                
Section 3 Business Concerns. 

Smith & Company Architects was founded in 1999. Their headquarters is located in Houston,              
Texas with field office locations in Austin and San Antonio, Texas. This firm has been certified                
as an AABE, MBE, SBE by the South Central Texas Regional Certification Agency. They are an                
architectural and interior design practice providing design and project management services to            
educational, municipal, housing, civic and community sectors. This firm has worked on projects             
of all scopes and sizes: programming studies, feasibility studies, master plans, facility            
assessments, interior renovations, major alterations, and new construction. Smith & Company           
Architects has received no prior awards from SAHA. Their client list includes the following              
Multi-Family Housing agencies: Tampa Housing Authority, Harris County Housing Authority,          
Houston Housing Authority, Texas City Housing Authority, Port Arthur Housing Authority,           
Temenos Community Development Corporation, The Montrose Center, and the City of Tulsa;            
Student Housing: Prairie View A&M University, Texas A&M University, Texas Southern           
University, and University of Houston/Victoria; Industrial: BOSTCO Storage, and Frito Lay;           

Page 85 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY         June 7, 2018

Parking Facilities: City of Tampa and Texas Southern University. Smith & Company Architects             
intends to subcontract 3% of all covered contracts to Section 3 Business Concerns. 

Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C. was established in 1919, and is located in Rockford, Illinois,               
with a field office location in Estero, Florida. They service clients nationwide and are a licensed                
design firm in Illinois, Missouri, Florida, Wisconsin, Oklahoma, Kansas, Iowa, Indiana, South            
Carolina, Texas, and Virginia. Tyson and Billy is a full service architectural firm whose focus is                
on multi-family housing, senior living, public sector projects, not-for-profit and private clients.            
Their services include pre-design/planning, site selection, architectural design, cost estimating,          
interior design, construction administration, material selection, building information modeling,         
feasibility studies, and post occupancy services. Tyson and Billy Architects have received no             
prior awards from SAHA. They have worked with over 50 Housing Authorities to include, but not                
limited, to the following: Austin Housing Authority, Houston Housing Authority, Belton Housing            
Authority, Brownsville Housing Authority, Greenville Housing Authority, Tampa Housing         
Authority, and Temple Housing Authority. Additionally, this firm has an indefinite service            
contract with Greenville Housing Authority. Their projects have included, but are not limited, to              
the following: multi-family development Lakeline Station Apartments, Austin, Texas; Gaston          
Place Apartments, Austin, Texas; Bethel Terrace Apartments; and architectural and engineering           
services were provided for an elderly, Section 8 property located in Chicago, Illinois; Rental              
Assistance Demonstration (RAD) conversions completed for Rock Island Housing Authority at           
Sunset Heights Apartments and Scattered Sites for Housing Authority of Champaign; developed            
42 single family homes (Badger Ridge) Homes with a private developer and the Housing              
Authority of Jo Daviess County; and developed a senior living community for Lake County              
Housing Authority. This firm will provide job vacancy notices to SAHA’s Section 3 Coordinator.              
If they are not successful in hiring from a pool of candidates provided by SAHA, they will                 
contribute 3% of their contract amount to a local training program established for low and very                
low income persons. 

The contract oversight will be provided by Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services             
and Sustainability, who will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements and            
performance. The Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits            
the Contractor’s Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the              
vendor’s SWMBE subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance           
evaluation surveys to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new              
solicitation process. 

STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5824 
Company Profiles 
Scoring Matrix 
Advertisement List 

Page 86 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5824 

RESOLUTION 5824, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACTS FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND          
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGENCY-WIDE TO THE FOLLOWING FIRMS: AG ASSOCIATES         
ARCHITECTS (HABE, HUB), ALAMO ARCHITECTS, INC. (SBE), DURAND-HOLLIS RUPE         
ARCHITECTS, INC. (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), DEBRA J. DOCKERY, ARCHITECT, P.C.            
(ESBE, SBE, WBE), SALDANA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (AABE, MBE, SBE), SMITH & COMPANY             
ARCHITECTS (AABE, MBE, SBE), SPRINKLE & CO. ARCHITECTS, LLC (ESBE, SBE), AND            
TYSON AND BILLY ARCHITECTS, P.C.; NOT TO EXCEED AN ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT            
OF $1,500,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR                
ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 

WHEREAS, on March 26, 2018, SAHA issued a Request For Qualifications (RFQ) #1803-906-07-4768             
for Architectural and Engineering Services that closed on April 18, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, a total of sixteen proposals were received in response to the RFQ; and  

WHEREAS, AG Associates Architects, Alamo Architects, Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects (DHR), Debra           
J. Dockery Architect, P.C. Saldana & Associates Architects, Smith & Company Architects, Sprinkle &            
Co. Architects, and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C. are the highest rated responsive and responsible              
proposers and are being recommended for contract award; and

WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for architectural and engineering services is not            
expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $1,500,00.00 and will be funded through Capital               
grant funds, insurance proceeds, approved operating budgets, and available reserves; and  

WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or designee,              
to execute all documents associated with this contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Approves Resolution 5824, authorizing the award of contracts for Architectural and          
Engineering Services agency-wide to the following firms: AG Associates Architects (HABE,          
HUB), Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc. (DBE, ESBE,          
HABE, MBE, SBE), Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE), Saldana &            
Associates, Inc. (AABE, MBE, SBE), Smith & Company Architects (AABE, MBE, SBE),           
Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE, SBE), and Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C.; not to              
exceed an annual cumulative amount of $1,500,000.00 for a period of one year with the              
option to renew up to four additional one-year terms.

2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents           
associated with this contract.

Passed and approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

_______________________________ Attested and approved as to form: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM
Chair, Board of Commissioners _______________________________ 

David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 87 of 124



AG Associates Architects 
Company Profile 

AG Associates Architects was founded in 1996, and is located in San Antonio, Texas. They are a full                  
service architectural firm whose services include architecture, needs analysis, facility programming,           
master planning, space planning, site feasibility/selection/planning, interior design, technology planning,          
construction administration and post construction warranty services. The firm specializes in the design             
and renovations of housing developments and single housing units. 

AG Associates has received prior awards from SAHA. Their SAHA projects include the following:              
assessment studies at Lincoln Heights, Springhill I & II, Sutton Homes, and Wheatley; master plan               
studies at Lincoln Heights, Springview, and Sutton; modernization projects at Fair Avenue, Lincoln             
Heights, Matt Garcia, forty-three scattered sites, and Villa Tranchese; Section 504 Accessibility            
Modifications at Blanco Apartments, Highview Apartments, Jewett Circle Apartments, Kenwood North           
Apartments, and Lewis Chatham Apartments. They also work with various Housing Authorities and             
include Carrizo Springs Housing Authority, Corpus Christi Housing Authority, Eagle Pass Housing            
Authority, and Pearsall Housing Authority. Their local clients include, but are not limited, to Bexar               
County, Kingsville LuLac Manor, Metropolitan Healthcare Systems, and San Antonio Independent           
School District.  

AG Associates self-certifies as a HABE (Hispanic Business Enterprise) and has been certified as a HUB 
(Historically Underutilized Business) by the State of Texas. 

 Alamo Architects 
Company Profile 

Alamo Architects was established in 1984, and is located in San Antonio, Texas. They are a                
multidisciplinary firm specializing in institutional, educational, multifamily and retail architecture as well            
as urban planning. Their services include architectural, planning and interior design services. 

This firm has received prior awards from SAHA for architectural and engineering services. Their SAHA               
projects include Artisan Park Economic Study; Costa Alameda, Costa Mirada, and Costa Valencia             
desIgn and construction administration; Guadalupe Homes redevelopment; Leigh Street Design          
Guidelines; Marie McGuire Apartments modernization; San Juan Square Phase I, II, III revitalization;             
and Victoria Courts redevelopment. They have also worked with Beaumont Housing Authority, Corpus             
Christi Housing Finance Corporation, and Fort Worth Housing Authority. Their local public clients include              
City of San Antonio, Bexar County, Alamo Colleges, Our Lady of the Lake University, and the University                 
of Texas at San Antonio. 

This firm has been certified as a SBE (small business enterprise). 

Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc. (DHR) 
Company Profile 

Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc. (DHR) was established in 1986, and is located in San Antonio,               
Texas. Services offered by this firm include architecture, interior design, master planning, facility             
assessments, graphics and renderings, 3D visual presentations, LEED/Green consulting, project          
management, Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) review, urban design, and virtual reality services.            
They specialize in the following areas: residential, multi-family housing, commercial, industrial,           
restoration, medical, retail, and education. 

Page 88 of 124



This firm has received prior awards from SAHA for architectural and engineering services. Their SAHA 
projects have included Blueridge homes design guidelines; Victoria Plaza assessments and 
modernization; Fair Avenue Apartments renovations; Matt Garcia Apartment renovations; TL Shaley 
Apartment complex upgrades; Pecan Hill Apartment and roof upgrades; and Sahara Ramsey Apartment 
upgrades. Their local clients include Alamo Colleges, Brooks Development Authority, CPS Energy, Port 
Authority of San Antonio, Southwest Research Institute, and State of Texas Adjutant General’s 
Department (Camp Mabry).  

DHR has been certified as a DBE (disabled), HABE (Hispanic). SBE (small business) 

Deborah J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. 
Company Profile 

Deborah J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. was established in 1989, and is located in San Antonio, Texas.                
They are a full service architectural firm providing architectural services, programming, and master             
planning for institutions, public agencies, and non-profit groups. Relevant services offered include the             
following: professional architectural services, programming, master planning and feasibility studies,          
interior design, historic renovations, restorations, and reconstruction, site planning, selection, and           
analysis, due diligence reviews, construction management and administration, design-build coordination,          
building code review and analysis, Americans with Disabilities Act review, green building studies and              
implementation, renderings and visualizations. 

This firm has received prior awards from SAHA for architecture and engineering services. Their SAHA               
projects include concept designs for securing the reception areas and locating security screening             
equipment at the two public entrances at SAHA’s Central Office. This firm has been awarded a contract                 
for on-call architectural services with the City of San Antonio, and an indefinite delivery/indefinite              
quantity (IDIQ) contract with Bexar County and Brooks Development Authority. Their local clients include              
the City of San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas Parks and Wildlife, City of Floresville, City of Hondo,                 
Medina County and numerous South Texas School Districts.  

This firm has been certified as a SBE (small business) and WBE (women-owned). 

Saldana & Associates, Inc. 
Company Profile 

Saldana & Associates, Inc. was founded in 1973, and has two office locations in San Antonio, Texas.                 
They offer professional services in architectural design, urban design, site planning, historical            
preservation, library design, interior design, accessibility compliance, feasibility studies, building          
programming and project management. The firm has had extensive involvement in the design and              
construction administration of large-scale municipal projects, educational facilities projects and          
government facilities.  

This firm has received a prior award from SAHA for architectural and engineering services. Their SAHA                
projects include the following: Dr. Charles Andrews renovations and site improvements; San Juan Brady              
Homes modernization; Cassiano Homes, fire damage repair; San Alfonso Senior Housing Development,            
29 new units; Sutton Homes repairs and renovations; and Victoria Courts additions and renovations to               
the daycare center. They have also worked with Bexar County Housing Authority, Del Rio Housing               
Authority and PHARR Housing Authority. This firm has an IDIQ contract with ACCD District wide and                
SouthSide Independent School District. Their Client list includes Alamo Community College District,            
Avenida Guadalupe Association, Bexar County, Laguna Shores Housing (Air Naval Base in Corpus             
Christi, Texas), San Antonio School District, the City of San Antonio, and University of Texas. 

Page 89 of 124



Saldana & Associates is a Subchapter S Corporation registered with the State of Texas, certified as a                 
DBE (disabled), SBE (small business), and MBE (minority) by the South Central Texas Regional              
Certification Agency (SCTRCA) and is also certified as an HUB (Historically Underutilized Business) by              
the State of Texas. 

Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC 
Company Profile 

Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC was founded in 2006, and is located in San Antonio, Texas. They are a                   
full service architectural/interior design firm with experience in a variety of building types to include               
municipal, institutional, religious, commercial, industrial,  multi-family and residential. 

Sprinkle & Co. has received a prior award from SAHA for architectural and engineering services. Their                
SAHA projects include the following: Castle Point renovation of eight apartment units, ADA, site exterior               
and stormwater improvements, and retaining wall design; Cassiano Homes structural evaluation and            
design work for six burned units; esthetic improvements Lofts at Marie McGuire and design guidelines               
for Wheatley Court Neighborhood. Their local client list includes the City of San Antonio, Silo Elevated                
Cuisine, Credit Human, Taco Cabana, Varga Endeavors and the private residences of Stacey Hill and               
Chuck Ramon.  

This firm has been certified as an SBE (small business). 

Smith & Company Architects 
Company Profile 

Smith & Company Architects was founded in 1999. Their headquarters is located in Houston, Texas with                
field office locations in Austin and San Antonio, Texas. They are an architectural and interior design                
practice providing design and project management services to educational, municipal, housing, civic and             
community sectors. This firm has worked on projects of all scopes and sizes to include programming                
studies, feasibility studies, master plans, facility assessments, interior renovations, major alterations, and            
new construction.  

This firm has received no prior awards from SAHA. Their client list includes: Multi-Family Housing:               
Tampa Housing Authority, Harris County Housing Authority, Houston Housing Authority, Texas City            
Housing Authority, Port Arthur Housing Authority, Temenos Community Development Corporation, The           
Montrose Center, and the City of Tulsa; Student Housing: Prairie View A&M University, Texas A&M               
University, Texas Southern University, and University of Houston/Victoria; Industrial: BOSTCO Storage,           
and Frito Lay; Parking Facilities: City of Tampa and Texas Southern University.  

This firm has been certified as an AABE (African American) and SBE (small business). 

Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C. 
Company Profile 

Tyson and Billy Architects, P.C. was established in 1919, and is located in Rockford, Illinois with a field                  
office location in Estero, Florida. They service clients nationwide and are a licensed design firm in                
Illinois, Missouri, Florida, Wisconsin, Oklahoma, Kansas, Iowa, Indiana, South Carolina, Texas, and            
Virginia. Tyson and Billy Architects is a full service architectural firm whose focus is on multi-family                
housing, senior living, public sector projects, not-for-profit and private clients. Their services include             
pre-design/planning, site selection, architectural design, cost estimating, interior design, construction          
administration, material selection, building information modeling, feasibility studies, and post occupancy           Page 90 of 124



services. 

Tyson and Billy Architects has received no prior awards from SAHA. They have worked with over 50                 
Housing Authorities to include, but not limited, to Austin Housing Authority, Houston Housing Authority,              
Belton Housing Authority, Brownsville Housing Authority, Greenville Housing Authority, Tampa Housing           
Authority, and Temple Housing Authority. Additionally, this firm has an indefinite service contract with              
Greenville Housing Authority. Their projects have included, but are not limited, to multi-family             
development Lakeline Station Apartments, Austin, Texas; Gaston Place Apartments, Austin, Texas;           
Bethel Terrace Apartments: architectural and engineering services provided for an elderly, Section 8             
property located in Chicago, Illinois; Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) conversions completed for            
Rock Island Housing Authority at Sunset Heights Apartments and Scattered Sites for Housing Authority              
of Champaign; developed forty-two single family homes (Badger Ridge), homes with a private developer              
and the Housing Authority of Jo Daviess County; developed a senior living community for Lake County                
Housing Authority. 

Page 91 of 124



Page 92 of 124



Page 93 of 124



Page 94 of 124



Page 95 of 124



Page 96 of 124



Page 97 of 124



Page 98 of 124



Page 99 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY              June 7, 2018 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 5823, AUTHORIZING MISSION DG AS DEVELOPER OF VITRE APARTMENT          
TRANSACTION INCLUDING: (I) EXECUTION OF ALL DOCUMENTATION NECESSARY TO         
CARRY OUT TRANSACTION; (II) AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY          
CORPORATION TO SERVE AS PRIME CONTRACTOR; (III) TO ENTER INTO THE           
AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP FOR VITRE APARTMENTS; AND (IV)         
OBTAINING TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TAX         
CREDITS FOR THE PROJECT AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION HEREWITH 

____________________________              __________________________________ 
David Nisivoccia  Timothy E. Alcott 
President and CEO  Real Estate and Legal Services Officer 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5823, authorizing Mission DG as developer of            
Vitre Apartment Transaction including: (I) execution of all documentation necessary to carry out             
transaction; (II) authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to serve as prime             
contractor; (III) to enter into the agreement of limited partnership for Vitre Apartments; and (IV)               
obtaining Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs tax credits for the project and              
other matters in connection herewith.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The final deal terms will be presented to the Board of Commissioners once negotiated. 

SUMMARY: 
Mission DG, is a developer of affordable housing in the State of Texas and specializes in the                 
development, construction and management of high quality senior and multi-family residential           
properties. The developer has approached SAHA with an opportunity to partner in the             
development of this affordable, multi-family housing development. 

The Vitre Apartments will be an approximately 232 unit housing development located at 120 N.               
Leona Street, San Antonio, Texas. The development will be targeted specifically for working             
families and will consist of 48 tax credit units. The new development will provide a mix of studio,                  
one-bedroom and two-bedroom units with appropriate design considerations and amenities.          
Vitre Apartments will represent the very best housing in terms of quality and sustainability in the                
marketplace today. Virte Apartments has an estimated development cost of $34,806,314.00 and            
will be funded by four percent Tax Credits and a HUD 221(d)(4) loan.  

Mission DG will partner with the San Antonio Housing Authority, which will benefit both entities.               
The partnership will receive the benefit of the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation’s ad              
valorem tax exemption, as well as its sales tax exemption; the agency will add units to its                 
affordable housing portfolio, enabling the agency to serve more residents and further its             

Page 100 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY              June 7, 2018 

mission. Mission DG will provide ongoing guarantees and long term property management. 

STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5823 
Site Map 

Page 101 of 124



San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution  5823 

RESOLUTION 5823, AUTHORIZING MISSION DG AS DEVELOPER OF VITRE APARTMENT          
TRANSACTION, INCLUDING: (I) EXECUTION OF ALL DOCUMENTATION NECESSARY TO         
CARRY OUT TRANSACTION; (II) AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY          
CORPORATION TO SERVE AS PRIME CONTRACTOR; (Ill) TO ENTER INTO THE AGREEMENT            
OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP FOR VITRE APARTMENTS; AND (IV) OBTAINING TEXAS          
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TAX CREDITS FOR THE PROJECT           
AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION HEREWITH 

WHEREAS, Mission DG has proposed a development for affordable, multifamily rental housing            
located at 120 N. Leona Street, in the City of San Antonio; and 

WHEREAS, at the request of Mission DG, the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC)              
agreed to serve as the sole member of the General Partner of the Partnership in connection with the                  
financing; and 

WHEREAS, Mission DG and the San Antonio Housing Authority and/or the SAHFC, plan to use 4                
percent Housing Tax Credits and a HUD 221(d)(4) loan for Vitre Apartments; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has determined that it is in the public's interest and to the                 
benefit of the citizens and residents of San Antonio, for the various entities to enter into the                 
transaction described above so that the partners may construct the project; and 

WHEREAS, this Board of Commissioners has reviewed the foregoing and determined that the action              
herein is in furtherance of the public purposes of SAHFC. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 

1) Confirms that it supports the proposed Vitre Apartments located at 120 N. Leona Street in              
the City of San Antonio, TX, and that this formal action has been taken to put on record                 
the opinion expressed by the San Antonio Housing Authority; and

2) Approves Resolution 5823, authorizing Mission DG as developer of Vitre Apartment          
Transaction including: (I) execution of all documentation necessary to carry out          
transaction; (II) authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to serve as           
prime contractor; (III) to enter into the agreement of limited partnership for Vitre            
Apartments; and (IV) obtaining Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs tax           
credits for the project and other matters in connection herewith; and

3) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents and            
extensions.

Approved the 7th day of June 2018. 

____________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM 
Chair, Board of Commissioners Attested and approved as to form: 

_____________________________ 
David Nisivoccia  
President and CEO Page 102 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

Vitre

1

Childrens 
Hospital

IH35

 IH10

Milam Park

Alamo 
College

Wells 
Fargo 
Bank

VIA Centro 
Plaza

N
. F

rio
 S

t. W. Commerce St.

w. Houston St.

N
. L

eo
na

 S
t.

Vitre

Historic Market Square

Page 103 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

Vitre - Conceptual Elevation

2

Milam Park

Alamo 
College

Wells 
Fargo 
Bank

VIA Centro 
Plaza

N
. F

rio
 S

t. W. Commerce St.

w. Houston St.

N
. L

eo
na

 S
t.

Vitre

Historic Market Square

Page 104 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

Tampico & Vitre

3

Milam Park

Alamo 
College

Wells 
Fargo 
Bank

VIA Centro 
Plaza

N
. F

rio
 S

t. W. Commerce St.

w. Houston St.

N
. L

eo
na

 S
t.

Vitre

Historic Market Square

Page 105 of 124



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

Tampico Architectural Conceptual Design

4

Milam Park

Alamo 
College

Wells 
Fargo 
Bank

VIA Centro 
Plaza

N
. F

rio
 S

t.

w. Houston St.

N
. L

eo
na

 S
t.

Vitre

Historic Market Square

Page 106 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Commissioners  

From: David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 

Presented by: Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services 

RE: Procurement Activity Report 

SUMMARY: 
For the calendar quarter ended March 31, 2018, the San Antonio Housing Authority’s             
Procurement Department issued six formal and two informal solicitations, receiving a total of fifty              
responses. This resulted in an average of 6.7 responses per formal solicitation and five              
responses per informal solicitation, for an overall average response rate of 6.25 per solicitation.              
New contracts awarded through the first quarter were $3,543,546.38, to include $325,000.00 in             
blanket awards and contract renewals in the amount $505,755.00, which resulted in a grand              
total awarded of $4,374,301.38. Of this total, $153,200.00 or 3.5 percent, were awarded to              
Small, Women-Owned and Minority Business Enterprises (SWMBE), and $27,225.00 or one           
percent, were awarded to Section 3 business concerns. 

For the 1st quarter calendar ending March 31, 2018, SAHA contractors reported thirty of their               
sixty-two new hires qualified as Section 3 individuals, which represented 48.4 percent of all new               
hires. The new hires were composed of seventeen male and thirteen female individuals. For the               
year-to-date, SAHA has hired three of its Section 3 temporary employees into full time positions               
within the agency. The weighted average wage rate for these Section 3 individuals is $13.30 per                
hour and the breakdown by category is as follows: 

 2 new Section 3 hires earned below $10.00 per hour 
 5 new Section 3 hires earned from $10.00 to < $12.00 per hour 

            17 new Section 3 hires earned from $12.00 to < $14.00 per hour 
 3 new Section 3 hires earned from $14.00 to < $16.00 per hour 
 3 new Section 3 hires earned from $16.00 to < $20.00 per hour 

During the first calendar quarter 2018, US Inspection Group conducted four Uniform Physical             
Condition Standards training classes.  

Current Solicitations: There is currently one Request For Proposals, two Requests for            
Qualifications, and one Quick Quote being advertised. The Request For Proposals is for             
Temporary and Contract Personnel Services; the Requests For Qualifications are for Interim            
Construction and Long Term (Permanent) Financing of the 100 Labor Street Project and             
Architectural, Engineering and Other Forensic Consulting Services; and, the Quick Quote is for             
Urgent Care, Physicals, Alcohol and Drug Testing Services. 

Page 107 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018 

Closed/Pending Solicitations: There are three solicitations that have closed and are currently            
being evaluated. The three solicitations include: Translation and Interpreter Services; Key           
Management System for Beacon Communities; and, Generator Load Bank Testing. 

Solicitations in Development: Procurement is currently working on a number of solicitations            
for advertisement. These include the following services: Fencing and Retaining Wall           
Replacement at Castle Point Apartments, Printing and Publication Services, Media Monitoring           
Services, Public Relations Consulting Services, Victoria Plaza Modernization, Fair Avenue          
Apartments Expansion Joint Repairs, Demolition Services for Infill Properties, Developer for           
Culebra Road Property, New Affordable Home Construction Services Wheatley Infill, Public           
Relations Firm for DSNR Initiatives, Legal Services Bond Mixed Finance, Consultant for            
Management of PH Portfolio, Blanco Apartments Mechanical Basement Repairs, Rehabilitation          
of seven Offline Burn Units at Cassiano Homes, Fire and Sprinkler Systems at Fair Avenue               
Apartments, Fire and Sprinkler Systems at Villa Tranchese, Reconstruction of Burn Unit at T.L.              
Shaley, Automatic Door Maintenance and Repair, Fencing, Automated Gates and Pedestrian           
Access Gates Maintenance and Repair, Security Guard Services for Various SAHA Properties,            
Consultant for Organizational Review of DSNR, Consultant for DSNR - Qualified Allocation Plan             
(QAP), Mowing and Ground Maintenance for Various PH Properties, Roof Replacement at 9514             
Hillsboro, Roof Replacement at Park Square Apartments, Building 2, Swimming Pool           
Maintenance and Repairs - Beacon Communities, and Performance Evaluation Services for the            
President/CEO Position.  

Blanket Awards: 
Awarded projects for the blanket Board approved awards are as follows: 

Contract Title Number of 
Awards 

Amount of 
Blanket Award 

Projects Awarded first 
Quarter 2018 

Architectural and Engineering 
Services 9 $1,500,000.00 $80,235.00 

Carpet and Flooring 
Purchase, Replacement and 
Installation  3 $325,000.00 $16,707.75 

Environmental Engineering 2 $600,000.00 $90,449.00 

Professional Engineering 4 $1,500,000.00 $51,545.00 

Residential Style HVAC 
Systems 3 $1,200,000.00 $239,214.75 

Legal Services 
Legal Services - Real Estate 
Bond/Mixed Finance Counsel 

Special Counsel Board 
Matters 

9 
4 
3 

1 

$500,000.00 
$250,000.00 

1% of Bond of 
Issue 

$60,000.00 

$21,419.33 

$6,610.18 

Page 108 of 124



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY June 7, 2018 

Pest Control for 
Beacon Communities 2 $220,000.00 $12,513.46 

Pest Control for Various 
SAHA Public Housing and 
Administrative Properties 2 $500,000.00 $32,584.94 

Residential Real Estate 
Appraisal Services 3 $150,000.00 $0.00 

Commercial Real Estate 
Broker 6 

Maximum 6% fee; 
$200/consulting 

and  market 
analysis $0.00 

Residential Real Estate 
Broker Services 2 $250,000.00 $0.00 

Temporary and Contracting 
Personnel 4 $1,325,000.00 $391,422.49 

PROPOSED ACTION: 
None at this time. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Amounts paid according to award provisions. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 

ATTACHMENT: 
Procurement Activity Report 

Page 109 of 124



 Procurement Activity Report May 24, 2018

Solicitations Currently being Advertised
SAHA Department Type Solicitation Name Bidders Conference Closes

Construction Services RFQ
Architectural, Engineering and Other Forensic Consulting 
Services 5/8/2018 5/25/2018

Human Resources RFP Temporary and Contract Personnel Services 5/15/2018 5/31/2018

Risk Management QQ
Urgent Care, Physicals, Alcohol and Drug Testing 
Services N/A 6/6/2018

DSNR RFQ
Interim Construction and Long Term (Permanent) 
Financing - 100 Labor Street Project N/A 6/11/2018

Solicitations Under Evaluation
SAHA Department Type Solicitation Name Date Closed Status

Innovative Technology RFP Cloud Unified Communication and Collaboration Solution 3/21/2018 Board 

Construction Services RFQ Architectural and Engineering Services 4/18/2018 Meeting 

DSNR IFB Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban 
Farm 5/2/2018 6/7/18

Communications and Public Affairs QQ Translation and Interpreter Services 9/13/2017 Negotiation

Beacon Communities QQ Key Management System for Beacon Communities 11/28/2017 Due Diligence

Construction Services QQ Generator Load Bank Testing 5/10/2018
Procurement 
Evaluation

Future Solicitations
Beacon Communities Fencing and Retaining Wall Replacement at Castle Point 

Apartments State of Texas - TXMAS Contract
Swimming Pool Maintenance and Repairs - Beacon 
Communities June 2018

Communications and Public Affairs Printing and Publication Services July 2018
Media Monitoring Services July 2018
Public Relations Consulting Services July 2018

Construction Services Victoria Plaza Modernization June 2018
Rehabilitation of 7 Offline Burn Units at Cassiano Homes June 2018
Reconstruction of Burn Unit at T.L. Shaley June 2018
Fire and Sprinkler Systems at Fair Avenue Apartments June 2018
Fire and Sprinkler Systems at Villa Tranchese June 2018

DSNR Demolition Services for Infill Properties June 2018
Developer for Culebra Road Property September 2018
New Affordable Home Construction Services Wheatley 
Infill August 2018
Consultant for Organizational Review of DSNR June 2018
Consultant for DSNR - Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) July 2018
Public Relations Firm for DSNR Initiatives July 2018

Legal Services Legal Services Bond Mixed Finance June 2018

Public Housing Consultant for Management of PH Portfolio July 2018
Mowing and Ground Maintenance for Various PH 
Properties June 2018
Fair Avenue Apartments Expansion Joint Repairs June 2018
Roof Replacement at 9514 Hillsboro June 2018
Roof Replacement at Park Square Apts, Building 2 June 2018
Automatic Door Maintenance and Repair July 2018
Blanco Apartments Mechanical Basement Repairs, July 2018
Fencing, Automated Gates and Pedestrian Access 
Gates Maintenance and Repair July 2018

Security Services Security Services for Various SAHA Properties June 2018

Board of Directors
Performance Evaluation Services for President/CEO 
Position June 2018

Page 110 of 124



Informal Awards Up to $50,000 

SAHA Department Solicitation Name Vendor Amount Date
Public Housing Seal Expansion Joints on Brick Trevino Contractor 3,195.00 4/12/2018
Human Resources Completion of ACA IRS Forms Accord Systems, LLC 5,990.60 4/13/2018
Public Housing Scaffolding - The Convent BrandSafway Solutions, Inc. 4,440.00 4/23/2018
Beacon Communities Bella Claire Fence Alterations Manuel Ortiz Construction 10,400.00 4/24/2018
CDI Event Rentals for Mother's Day Event Illusions Rental and Designs 2,856.54 4/26/2018
Human Resources HRIS Manager Enterprise-Wide Solutions, Inc. 49,903.50 5/10/2018
General Services Annual Maintenance Rapiscan Systems Rapiscan Systems, Inc. 9,124.00 5/11/2018
Beacon Communities Uniforms for Beacon Staff CINTAS 5,539.68 5/15/2018

Page 111 of 124



To: Board of Commissioners 

Date: June 7, 2018 

From: Thomas F. Adkisson, Chair, Finance Committee 

Subject: Update and discussion regarding the May 17, 2018, Finance Committee          
Meeting  

A Finance Committee meeting was held on Thursday, May 17, 2018. Attendees included             
Committee Chair Thomas F. Adkisson, Commissioner Francesca Caballero, Commissioner         
Charles Clack, Commissioner Marie R. McClure, Commissioner Jessica Weaver, SAHA          
President and CEO David Nisivoccia and SAHA staff.  

The following topics were discussed during the meeting: 

Minutes 
Approval of the February 15, 2018, Finance Committee Meeting minutes. 

The following resolution was approved to move forward to the Board meeting: 

Resolution 5822, approving the Consolidated Operating Budget for the San          
Antonio Housing Authority and its affiliated Non-Profits for the fiscal year           
ending June 30, 2019, was presented by Mr. Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer             
and Ms. Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting.  

Update and discussion regarding the Quarterly Financial Report for the San           
Antonio Housing Authority  
Ms. Fiedler reported and provided the financial highlights of the San Antonio Housing             
Authority. The results of operations for the nine months ended March 31, 2018, reflect a               
surplus before non-cash items of $16.4 million, which was $9.2 million over budgeted             
projections. The Total Operating Revenue was approximately $4.4 million above budget,           
due to a favorable variance of $7.0 million in Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment              
(HAP) Revenue. The total Operating Expenses ended the period $3.5 million below            
budget, due primarily to favorable variances of $1.9 million in Salaries and Benefits and              
$3.6 million in Other Expenses.  

The Comparative Balance Sheet reflects an overall increase in Total Net Position of             
$11.3 million from March 31, 2017, to March 31, 2018. Total Assets increased $16.3              
million due to increases of $8.3 million in Current Assets, $2.7 million in Fixed Assets,               
and $5.3 million in Other Non-Current Assets. The complete Quarterly Financial Report            
for the San Antonio Housing Authority was provided to the Board in the Finance              
Committee final packet.  

-1-
Page 112 of 124



Update and discussion regarding the Internal Audit Department Quarterly Report 
Ms. Helen Madison, Acting Director of Internal Audit, reported that Internal Audit provides             
independent and objective assurance, auditing, and consulting services to add value,           
improve internal controls, and strengthen the Agency’s operations. The function helps the            
Housing Authority accomplish its objectives by using a systematic, disciplined approach           
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance            
processes. In addition to its oversight activities, internal audit serves as a resource for              
identifying opportunities for best practices and efficiencies. Ms. Madison’s presentation to           
the Board of Commissioners included updates regarding the status of FY 2017-2018            
Internal Audit Plan, the preparation of the FY 2018-2019 Internal Audit Plan, and the              
status of Corrective Action items resulting from internal audits. 

-2-
Page 113 of 124



To: Board of Commissioners 

Date: June 7, 2018 

From: Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair, Operations and Choice Neighborhood         
Committee 

Subject: Update and discussion regarding the May 17, 2018, Operations and Choice           
Neighborhood Committee Meeting  

An Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee meeting was held on Thursday, May 17,             
2018, at the Central Office of the San Antonio Housing Authority. Attendees included Board              
Chair Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Commissioner Francesca Caballero, Commissioner Charles          
Clack, Commissioner Marie R. McClure, Commissioner Jessica Weaver, SAHA President and           
CEO David Nisivoccia and SAHA staff. 

The following topics were discussed at the committee meeting: 

Update and discussion regarding Wheatley Choice Neighborhood activities 
An update for the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood was provided. 

The following resolutions were approved to move forward to the Board meeting: 

Resolution 5823, authorizing Mission DG as developer of Vitre Apartment          
Transaction including: (I) execution of all documentation necessary to carry out           
transaction; (II) authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to serve as            
prime contractor; (III) to enter into the agreement of limited partnership for Vitre             
Apartments; and (IV) obtaining Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs           
tax credits for the project and other matters in connection herewith was presented by  
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer and by Developer, Mr. Mark               
Tolley. 

Resolution 5827, authorizing the President and CEO to renew or place insurance            
policies covering property, liability, cyber liability, excess/umbrella, directors and         
officers, employment practices, workers’ compensation, automobile fleet, fiduciary,        
fidelity, flood, and boiler and machinery for the San Antonio Housing Authority and             
its affiliated entities, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, in an amount not to exceed             
$3,200,000 was presented by Ms. Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and            
Accounting. 

Resolution 5826, authorizing the award of a contract for a cloud unified            
communication and collaboration solution to RingCentral, Inc. for an annual          
cumulative amount not to exceed $275,000.00 for year one, $170,000.00 for year two,             
$175.000.00 for year three and $170,000.00 for each of the years four and five; for a                
period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was                

-1-
Page 114 of 124



presented by Ms. Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative Technology and Mr. Steven             
Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services. 

Resolution 5825, authorizing the award of a contract for Prefabricated Metal Building            
for Garcia Street Urban Farm to Geofill Material Technologies, dba, Geofill           
Construction (SBE) for an amount not to exceed $62,480.00 was presented by Mr.             
Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services, Ms. Lorraine Robles,           
Director of Development Services and Neighborhood Revitalization and Ms. Beth Keel,           
Sustainability Liaison. 

Resolution 5824, authorizing the award of contracts for Architectural and          
Engineering Services agency-wide to the following firms: AG Associates Architects          
(HABE, HUB), Alamo Architects, Inc. (SBE), Durand-Hollis Rupe Architects, Inc.          
(DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), Debra J. Dockery, Architect, P.C. (ESBE, SBE, WBE),             
Saldana & Associates, Inc. (AABE, MBE, SBE), Smith & Company Architects (AABE,            
MBE, SBE), Sprinkle & Co. Architects, LLC (ESBE, SBE), and Tyson and Billy             
Architects, P.C.; not to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $1,500,000.00 for a             
period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was                
presented by Mr. Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services and Mr.             
Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and Sustainability, 

Update and discussion regarding Fencing and Retaining Wall Replacement at Castle Point            
Apartments 
Ms. Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities, reported that on March 28, 2018, SAHA              
received a Notice of Violation from the City of San Antonio Code Enforcement related to the                
retaining walls at the Beacon Communities Castle Point Apartments. The structure is            
approximately 1,150 linear feet and is located on the east and south sides of the property. The                 
retaining wall and fencing has been a part of Beacon’s Overall Castle Point Site Wide               
Improvements Project, which is not scheduled to start until approximately late summer of this              
year. To expedite the completion of this project, and in response to the Code notice, SAHA has                 
requested price quotes from three State of Texas TXMAS (Texas Multiple Award Schedule)             
contractors with responses due May 14, 2018. SAHA is able to utilize TXMAS contracts as a                
member of the State of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Program. Although use of TXMAS             
contracts are exempt from competitive bidding requirements, SAHA has chosen to obtain quotes             
from multiple vendors to ensure it receives a fair and reasonable price. Sprinkle & Co. Architects,                
LLC, SAHA’s architect for the Castle Point project, had provided an estimated cost of $208,577               
for this work. Under SAHA’s Procurement Policy, the Contracting Officer or designee can             
approve any procurement of goods, supplies, materials, services or equipment needed to            
mitigate an emergency regardless of the dollar amount, provided that the nature and value of               
said purchases, if such purchases exceed delegated authority, shall be reported to the Board of               
Commissioners consistent with this Policy. An emergency is an event which requires immediate             
action in order to prevent a hazard to life, health, safety, welfare or to avoid undue additional cost                  
to SAHA. In this particular case, there are concerns for safety in the event the wall were to fail                   
before our larger site wide project is completed.  

-2-
Page 115 of 124



Mr. Morando further stated that since the expenditure amount to mitigate the emergency is              
expected to exceed the delegated authority of the Contracting Officer, and in accordance with the               
SAHA Procurement Policy, a ratification will be presented at an upcoming, Board of             
Commissioners meeting with details of the award and the contract amount. 

Update and discussion regarding Beacon Communities Capital Projects 
Ms. Baird provided a brief overview of the Beacon Communities Capital Projects for the following               
properties: Woodhill, Towering Oaks, Monterrey Park, Castle Point, La Providencia, Villa De            
Valencia, Sunshine Plaza, Pecan Hill, Burning Tree, Encanta Villa and Legacy at Crown             
Meadows. 

Update and discussion regarding the Capital Plan for Public Housing 
Mr. Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management, provided a quarterly status update on capital              
projects that have been contemplated under the Public Housing 5 Year Capital Plan. Projects              
have been completed at the following properties: Cross Creek Apartments, Escondida           
Apartments, H.B. Gonzalez Apartments, Madonna Apartments, Morris Beldon Apartments, W.C.          
White Apartments and Westway Apartments.  

The projects in process include the following properties: Charles Andrews Apartments, Francis            
Furey Apartments, Frank Hornsby Apartments, Lila Cockrell Apartments, Lincoln Heights          
Apartments and Tarry Towne Apartments.  

The projects in the planning phase include the following properties: Blanco Apartments,            
Cassiano Homes, Fair Avenue Apartments, Le Chalet Apartments, T.L. Shaley Apartments,           
Victoria Plaza and Villa Tranchese apartments.  

Mr. Roth further stated that the capital projects are being funded by a combination of Capital                
Fund Program (CFP), Moving to Work (MTW) Funds, insurance loss proceeds, and available             
reserves. 

-3-
Page 116 of 124



President’s Report 

Customer Service Survey for AHP, PH and Beacon Clients 
"We Want to Hear From You" - SAHA will be conducting a Customer Satisfaction Survey from June                 
1 through June 15, 2018. Ten percent of SAHA residents/clients from all three programs were               
randomly selected for the electronic survey; however, the survey is being advertised and is              
available to all residents. The survey includes questions related to staff engagement, security,             
technology and knowledge of SAHA programs. SAHA is deploying flyers/postcards, signage,           
bulletin boards, newsletters and oral communication in efforts to have the survey completed. The              
results of the survey will be presented to the Board in August. 

Annual William “Bill” Sinkin Education Summit 
The 6th Annual William "Bill" Sinkin Education Summit will be held Saturday, August 4, 2018, from                
9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at McAllister Auditorium located on the San Antonio College campus. The                
Education Investment Foundation (EIF), will award forty-three scholarships to recognize students           
for their academic achievements, and 150 Rewarding Educational Achievement, Cultivating Hope           
(REACH) Awards to children K-12th grade who have maintained an A-B Honor Roll and perfect               
attendance throughout the year. The event will also include a GED graduation ceremony for thirty               
residents and recognition of completion for approximately fifty Youth Summer Employment           
Program Students, as well as completion of the SAISD’s Parent Leadership Institute for twenty              
residents. The Summit will feature educational workshops, book giveaways, laptop raffle, resource            
fair, and complimentary lunch to the 500 attending residents. 

Bring Your Dog to Work Day 
SAHA employees have marked their calendar to bring their dog to work for a day! On June 22,                  
2018, SAHA will participate in the Bring Your Dog to Work Day. This day was created by Pet                  
Sitters International to celebrate the great companions dogs make and to promote their adoptions.              
The event encourages employers to experience the joys of pets in the workplace for one day to                 
support their local pet communities. 

Page 117 of 124



Annual Father’s Day Fiesta 
The 18th Annual Father’s Day Fiesta is scheduled for Saturday, June 16, 2018. The festivities to                
honor and celebrate the good men of our community will take place at the SAHA Park, located at                  
818 S. Flores, between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.  

SAHA to Host Youths for the Summer 
Once again, SAHA will administer a Summer Youth Employment Program from June 11, 2018, to               
August 4, 2018. SAHA youths between the ages of sixteen and twenty-one are placed in various                
positions at SAHA properties, Central Office, and external partnering agencies. Students           
participating in the summer program will work twenty hours a week Monday - Thursday and are                
required to attend workshops scheduled on June 22, July 13, and August 4.  

Page 118 of 124



Art in the Park Meeting 
The first Art in the Park Community Meeting was held on May 23, 2018, at the Wheatley Park                  
Senior Living Center. SAHA invited residents to join the creative team of architects and artists for a                 
collaborative discussion on features and historical memories they would like implemented and            
preserved in their community. The artists will be revamping and bringing art to the Phillis Wheatley                
Park located between Lamar and Arthur Street on North Mittman Street. 

Page 119 of 124



2nd Annual Rib Cook-Off 
The 2nd Annual Rib Cook-Off was held on May 18, 2018. The Diablos (General Services               
Department) claimed the pit master title and won overall Best Ribs at the Education Investment               
Foundation's Rib Cook-Off. Up In Smoke (Inspections Department) garnered Second Place and            
Castle Point Smokers (Beacon) earned Third Place and People's Choice. The competition was             
heated outdoors for Team Spirit, but was ultimately awarded to Cue Bandits (Community             
Development Initiatives Department). The challenge raised $1,580 for the Education Investment           
Foundation, which awards scholarships and achievement awards to students in SAHA programs. 

Page 120 of 124



2018 Safety Fair 
SAHA employees had an opportunity to visit with over fifteen health and wellness representatives              
at the SAHA Health Fair, sponsored by SAHA and Kaiser Medical Management, on May 14, 2018,                
in the Central Office Board Room and Atrium. The health fair included health screenings and               
giveaways from vendors who provided medical services, wellness products and community           
resources information. Attendees also had the opportunity to win raffle drawing prizes.  



Page 121 of 124



SAHA Celebrates Mothers 
Makeovers, fashion and words of encouragement filled the SAHA Park at the 9th Annual Mother's               
Day Celebration on May 11, 2018. Each year, women participating in SAHA Programs are invited               
to an uplifting day of pampering and celebration. The women were greeted with a single rose and                 
were given a chance to receive a makeover, massage and shop for free clothing and accessories                
at the SAHA Boutique. 

This year's keynote speaker Michelle Garibay-Carey, poet and singer, encouraged women to "rise             
up." Resident Keynote Crystal Rodriguez shared her experience through the Family           
Self-Sufficiency Program and is on her way to becoming a homeowner. 

Page 122 of 124



Children Join SAHA Parents at Bring our Daughters and Sons to Work Day 
On April 26, 2018, daughters and sons were given a glimpse into their parent's workday at the                 
annual Bring Our Daughters and Sons to Work Day, a national program to inspire children to see                 
themselves in potential career fields. The day was lined up with SAHA Q&A, tours of different                
departments and plant starter kit building. 

Page 123 of 124



Cassiano Homes Walking School Bus 
Volunteers from the San Antonio Fire Department, Animal Cares, the San Antonio Police             
Department and McGruff the Crime Dog teamed up with the San Antonio Housing Authority and               
Healthy Neighborhoods to ensure more than 40 children who do not have access to school district                
transportation arrive to school safely through a “Walking School Bus” initiative. Metro Health and              
Animal Cares were in attendance on Friday, May 25, 2018, to distribute giveaways. 

The San Antonio Housing Authority and Healthy Neighborhoods launched the “Walking School            
Bus” initiative to supervise and walk children every Monday and Friday of the school year, rain or                 
shine. 

The school-aged children live in the SAHA Cassiano Homes community and attend Sarah King              
Elementary, where district transportation does not operate within two miles of the school. A walking               
audit by the Alamo Area Metropolitan Planning Organization found the route with minimal             
controlled intersections and stop signs for pedestrians. 

Page 124 of 124


	1. Cover of  Regular Board Meeting-RBM-06-07-18 (1)
	2. Agenda Regular Board Meeting-06-07-18-
	3. Minutes-05-03-18-RBM-06-07-18 
	3A. Minutes - Finance Committee Mtg - May 17, 2018-RBM-06-07-18
	3B. Minutes-05-17-18-Operations and Choice Meeting-RBM-06-07-18
	4. Resolution 5822-Memo-Approval of Budget-RBM-06-07-18
	4A. Resolution 5822-Approval of Budget-RBM-06-07-18
	4B. Resolution 5822-Approval of Budget-Form 52574 HUD-RBM-06-07-18
	4C. Revised-Draft-Resolution 5822-Budget Approval-Presentation-RBM-06-07-18 (1)
	2nd REVISED-Draft-Resolution 5822-Budget Approval-Presentation Budget Committee Meeting-Finance Mtg.-05-17-18
	Budget Presentation- Tab 1
	SAHA Board of Comissioners
	Agenda
	Budgeting Principles and Goals
	Key Agency Budget Priorities
	Who We Serve
	Federal Funding Trend
	FY 2019 Consolidated Revenue (Sources)
	FY 2019 Consolidated Revenue Trend
	Consolidated Budget by Line of Business (Millions)
	Proposed Uses of SAHA MTW Funds
	SAHA Personnel Count
	FY 2019 SAHA Organizational Structure
	Goals for Public Housing
	Goals for Community Development Initiatives
	Discussion


	Revised Budget Committee Meeting
	Budget Presenation- Tab 1
	SAHA and Partner Accomplishments
	FY 2019 Consolidated Uses of Funds
	FY 2019 Consolidated Expense Trend
	Goals for Assisted Housing
	Goals for Beacon Communities
	Goals for Real Estate Services
	Goals for Choice Neighborhood Implementation
	Goals for Construction Services & Sustainability
	Goals for Administrative Departments 



	5. Resolution 5827-Insurance Renewals-Memo-RBM-06-07-18
	5A. Resolution 5827-Insurance Renewal-RBM-06-07-18 (2)
	5B. Resolution 5827-Insurance Renewal- 2018-19 Renewal Worksheet-RBM-06-07-18
	6. Resolution 5826-Memo-Cloud Unified Comm-RBM-06-07-18
	6A. Resolution 5826-Cloud Unified Comm.-RBM-06-07-18
	6B. Resolution 5826-Cloud Unified Comm.-Profile-RBM-06-07-18
	6C. Resolution 5826-Cloud Unified Comm-Supporting Docs.-RBM-06-07-18.-05-1718
	7. Resolution 5825-Urban Farm-Memo-RBM-06-07-18
	7A. Resolution 5825-Urban Farm-RBM-06-07-18
	7B. Resolution 5825-Urban Farm-Company Profile-Geofil-RBM-06-07-18
	7C. Resolution 5825-Urban Farm-Supporting Docs-RBM-06-07-18.-05-17-18
	7D. Resolution 5825-Urban Farm-Photos-07-06-18
	8. Memo-Resolution 5824-Architectural _ Engineering Services-RBM-06-07-18
	8A. Resolution 5824-Architectural _ Engineering Service-RBM-06-07-18
	8B. Resolution 5824-Architectural _ Engineering Services-Company Profile-RBM-06-07-18
	8C. Resolution 5824-Architectural _ Engineering Service-Supporting Doc-RBM-06-07-18.-05-17-18
	9. Resolution 5823-Vitre-Memo-RBM-06-07-18
	9A. Resolution 5823-Vitre-RBM-06-07-18
	9B. Resolution 5823-Vitre Apartments-Maps-RBM-06-07-18
	10. Procurement Memo June 7, 2018-RBM-06-07-18
	10A. Procurement Report-Supporting Doc.RBM-06-07-18
	11. Finance Committee Mtg Update of May 17, 2018-RBM-06-07-18
	12. Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee Mtg Update of May 17, 2018-RBM-06-07-18
	13. President’s Report-RBM-06-07-18

	PHA Name: San Antonio Housing Authority
	PHA code: TX006
	PHA FY: 07/01/2018
	BR Number: 5822
	Check Box1: Yes
	Date Operating Budget Approved: 06/07/2018
	Check Box2: Off
	Date Operating Budget Submitted to HUD: 
	Check Box3: Off
	Date Operating Budget Revision Approved: 
	Check Box4: Off
	Date Operating Budget Revision Submitted to HUD: 
	Print Board Chairpersons Name: Morris A. Stribling
	Signature: 
	Date: 06/07/2018


